
 

                         
 
 
 

                             
 

 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 
 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION 
 MEETING 

 
FEBRUARY 16, 2022 

 
AGENDA PACKET 

 

1



2



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGENDA 5 
                    

PRESENTATIONS 9 
A. ENERGY PRESENTATION FROM ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD   

  - AMANDA MCCLURE, EAB INTERN              

BOARDS & COMMITEES  47 
A. REVIEW OF TOWN BOARD APPLICATIONS – APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS 

 
- CURTIS BYRD, EAB (REAPPOINTMENT)                49 
- DAVID CAMPBELL, P & Z (REAPPOINTMENT)               50 
- APRIL EVANS, P & Z (REAPPOINTMENT)                51 
- DAN HARPER, P & Z (APPOINTMENT - NEW APPLICANT)                                             52 
- ROBERT SCHAEFER, BOA (REAPPOINTMENT)                                                                   54 
- XOCHITL ROSS, BOA (REAPPOINTMENT)                                                                            55 
- JAMES MAGUIRE, POLICE PENSION (REAPPOINTMENT)                                                56 
 

B. CONSIDERATION OF APPOINTMENT TO MB LIBRARY BOARD                                           59 

CONSENT AGENDA 68 

A. TOWN COMMISSION WORKSHOP DRAFT MINUTES FROM 1/12/22                                            69 
B. TOWN COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING  DRAFT MINUTES FROM 1/19/22                           76  
C. SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR 406 1ST AVENUE 86 
D. SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR 208 2ND AVENUE 98 

   

OLD BUSINESS 146 
A. SITE PLAN FOR 419 AVENUE B               147 

 

NEW BUSINESS  
A. THE FOUNDERS MONUMENT PROJECT LETTER OF SUPPORT                          186  
B. PROCLAMATION: HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH                              188         
C. CONSIDERATION OF NEW CODE FOR OUTDOOR SEATING WITH ROOF                         192 
D. DRAFT FINANCE RESOLUTION 2022-02                             197      
E. CONSIDERATION OF ESTIMATE TO REPLACE A/S UNITS IN TOWN HALL                          200 

                                            

STAFF REPORTS 204 

1. TOWN MANAGER REPORT  
2.  BUILDING DEPARTMENT REPORT                                                                                                                   204 
3.  PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 208 



4.  CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 209 
5.  POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT 211 
6.   FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 217 
7.   FINANCE REPORT 221 

ACTION ITEMS 229 



Town of Melbourne Beach 
REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

FEBRUARY 16, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
AGENDA 

 
The Town Commission will conduct a Regular Town Commission Meeting 

on Wednesday February 16, 2022 in the Community Center 
to address the items below 

 
Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton       

     Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 
 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The 
following sections of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further 
motion by the Commission: Changes to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in 
proceedings of the board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC 
THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the 
proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a 
method for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing 
special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the 
Town Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

 

5



1. Call to Order – Led by Mayor Hoover 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

4. Presentations 
 
A. Energy Report presented by the Environmental Advisory Board 

 
5. Boards & Committees 

 
A. Appointments and Reappointments to Town Boards 

 
1. Reappointment of Curtis Byrd to the Environmental Advisory Board for a 
term of two years, ending February 16, 2024 
2. Reappointment of David Campbell and April Evans to the Planning & 
Zoning Board for a term of two years, ending February 16, 2024 
4. Appointment of Dan Harper as an alternate or member to the Parks Board 
for a term of two years, ending February 16, 2022 
5. Reappointment of Robert Schaefer and Xochitl Ross to the Board of 
Adjustment for a term of two years, ending February 16, 2024 
6. Reappointment of James Maguire to the Police Pension Board for a term 
of two years, ending February 16, 2024 
 

B. Appointment to the Melbourne Beach Library Advisory Board 
 

6. Public Comments 
 
After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their 
name and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare 
their comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address 
the Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business not on the Agenda.   
 

7. Approval of the Agenda  
 

8. Consent Agenda   
A. Approval of January 12, 2022 TCW Draft Minutes  
B. Approval of January 19, 2022 RTCM Draft Minutes 
C. Site Plan Approval for 406 1st Avenue 
D. Site Plan Approval for 208 2nd Avenue 
 

9. Old Business  
 
A. Consideration of site plan approval for 419 Avenue B 

 
 

6



10. New Business 
 

A. Consideration of Approving Letter in Support of the Founders Monument 
Project 

B. Consideration of Proclamation for Human Trafficking Awareness Month 
C. Consideration of New Code of Ordinance for Outdoor Seating with Roof 
D. Consideration of Finance Resolution 2022-02 
E. Consideration of Estimates to replace A/C units in Town Hall  

 
12. Staff Reports  

A. Town Attorney Report 
B. Town Manager Report  
C. Town Clerk Report  
D. Departmental Reports 

1. Building Department  
2. Public Works Department  
3. Code Enforcement  
4. Police Department  
5. Fire Department  
6. Finance Department  

 
13.    Town Commission Comments   

A. General Comments 
B. Review of Commission Action List  

 
14.   Adjournment 

7



8



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: Presentations  

Meeting Date: February 16, 2022 

Subject: Energy Report   

Submitted By: Amanda McClure, EAB Intern  

Background Information:  

Amanda McClure is presenting her research after gathering data and examining the 
energy use of town buildings, her report will provide recommendations for energy 
conservation, and evaluate the possibility of solar power. 

Recommendation: 

Amanda will present her findings to the Commission. 

Attachments:   

• Energy Report (outlining detailed energy data and sources) 
• Energy Presentation (a high level deck to present findings) 

 
 
 

9



10



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 1

Energy Conservation and Solar Energy

Town of Melbourne Beach, FL

Amanda McClure

November 15, 2021

11



12



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy
Town of Melbourne Beach, FL

13



Energy Use
14



Energy Use

Annual Energy Use

Annual Energy 

Use (kWh)

Annual Energy 

Use ($)

Town Hall Complex 233,376 19,467

Community Center 26,276 2,690

Ryckman Restroom 18,808 2,003

15



Energy Conservation Recommendations

Town Hall Complex

● Schedule HVAC to limit use during unoccupied hours

● LED bulbs

● Motion-detecting lighting for restrooms & conference rooms

● Air curtain in the fire station bay

● Examine roof insulation to maximize R-value

● For any single-pane windows, target a solar heat gain coefficient of 0.26 or less

16



Energy Conservation Recommendations

Ryckman Park Restroom

● Motion-detecting lighting

● LED bulbs

Community Center

● Schedule HVAC to limit use during unoccupied hours

● LED bulbs

17



Expected Savings Over 20 Years

Solar Energy Estimates

PV Size (kW) PV Cost ($)

Expected Savings 

($)

Payback Period 

(Years)

Annual Reduced 

CO
2
 Emissions 

(Metric Tonnes)

Town Hall Complex 28.0 84,115 51,380 13 27

Town Hall Complex & 

Public Works Roof
42.0 126,000 122,786 10 49

Community Center 

Smaller Installation
9.5 29,355 12,671 13 9

Community Center 12.5 38,235 18,037 14 12

Ryckman Restroom 8.8 27,135 27,135 17 7

18



Local Solar Installations

● Satellite Beach City Hall
○ 83 kW System
○ Ballasted Roof System
○ SunPower by esaSolar

19



Local Solar Installations

City of Cape Canaveral Community 
Center:

● PV system cost: $121,440
● Payback period: 13 years
● System size: 47 kilowatts
● Estimated savings: $242,525 over 25 

years
● CO2 emissions savings: 1,343 metric 

tons over 25 years
● Construction start date: Fall 2021
● 15 Lightyears

20



Solar Contacts

15 Lightyears

Website: 15lightyears.com

Phone: (855) 438-1515

Email: info@15lightyears.com

Address:

776 Bennett Drive, Suite 101

Longwood, Florida 32750

SUNPOWER by esaSolar

Website: esa-solar.com

Phone: (407) 329-5480

Email: info@esa-solar.com

Address:

2250 Lucien Way, 

Maitland, FL 32751

21



Comments and Questions

22



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 2

Table of Contents

List of Illustrations 2

Summary of Energy Data 4

Average Energy Use 5

Facility Specifications 6

Energy Conservation Opportunities 6
Town Hall Complex 6
Ryckman Park Restroom 6
Community Center 6

Solar Energy Opportunity Estimates 7
Town Hall Complex 7
Community Center 8
Ryckman Park Restroom 8

Local Solar Installations 9

Solar Contacts 11

References 12

Appendix A: Energy Usage and Costs 14
Town Hall Complex 14
Town Hall Complex Outdoor Lighting 16
Community Center 17
Ryckman Park Restroom 19
23751 Oak St. Williams Building 21
190 Ocean Ave Beach Restroom 23

Appendix B: Payback Period Calculations 25

Appendix C: Light Bulb Comparison 26

List of Illustrations

Figure 1 Image of Town of Melbourne Beach Complex 1

23



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 3

Summary of Energy Data

Energy Data Town of Melbourne Beach Buildings

Annual

Energy Use

(kWh)

Annual

Energy Use

($)

PV Size

(kW) PV Cost ($)

Expected

Savings ($)

Payback

Period

(Years)

Annual

Reduced

CO2

Emissions

(Metric

Tonnes)

Town Hall

Complex
233,376 19,467 28.0 84,115 51,380 13 27

Town Hall

Complex &

Public Works

Roof

233,376 19,467 42.0 126,000 122,786 10 49

Community

Center Smaller

Installation

26,276 2,690 9.5 29,355 12,671 13 9

Community

Center
26,276 2,690 12.5 38,235 18,037 14 12

Expected savings are from solar installations over 20 years.

24



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 4

Average Energy Use
See Appendix A for Data Sources

Town Hall Complex

● Monthly Energy Use: 19,448 kWh

● Monthly Energy Cost: $1,622

● Average Cost/kWh: $0.08

Town Hall Complex Outdoor Lighting

● Monthly Energy Use: 701 kWh

● Monthly Energy Cost: $113

● Average Cost/kWh: $0.16

Community Center

● Monthly Energy Use: 2190 kWh

● Monthly Energy Cost: $224

● Average Cost/kWh: $0.10

Ryckman Park Restroom

● Monthly Energy Use: 1567 kWh

● Monthly Energy Cost: $167

● Average Cost/kWh: $0.11

Old Town Hall

● Monthly Energy Use: 381 kWh

● Monthly Energy Cost: $49

● Average Cost/kWh: $0.16

25



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 5

Facility Specifications

Town Hall Complex

● 75% LED Lighting

● 2 HVAC Units, 20 Tons Each

○ Condensers have an energy efficiency rating (EER) of 11.4

● One 80 Gallon Electric Water Heater

Energy Conservation Opportunities

Town Hall Complex

● Create a schedule for the air conditioning that limits use during hours when the building

is unoccupied.

● Replace the remaining 25% of the non-LED lighting with LED bulbs.

● Add motion-detecting to the lighting in restrooms and conference rooms.

● If the fire station bay is air-conditioned, add an air curtain above the doorway to keep the

cool air in when the garage door is open.

● Examine roof insulation to maximize the R-value (resistance to heat flow) and ensure the

insulation is in the correct position and the quantity is sufficient.

● For any single-pane windows, target a solar heat gain coefficient (SHGC) below 0.26 by

considering glazing, retrofitting, or replacing windows.

Ryckman Park Restroom

● Add motion-detecting to the lighting.

● Replace any non-LED lighting with LED bulbs.

Community Center

● Create a schedule for the air conditioning that limits use during hours when the building

is unoccupied.

● Replace any non-LED lighting with LED bulbs.

26



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 6

Solar Energy Opportunity Estimates

Town Hall Complex

● PV system cost: $84,115

● Energy usage covered: 15%

● Payback period: 13 years

● System size: 28 kW

● Estimated savings: $51,380 over 20 years

● CO2 emissions savings:

○ 27 metric tonnes annually

○ 546 metric tonnes over 20 years

● PV system cost: $126,000

● Energy usage covered: 23%

● Payback period: 10 years

● System size: 42 kW

● Estimated savings: $122,786 over 20 years

● CO2 emissions savings:

○ 49 metric tonnes annually

○ 974 metric tonnes over 20 years

27



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 7

Community Center

● PV system cost: $29,355

● Energy usage covered: 66%

● Payback period: 13 years

● System size: 9.5 kW

● Estimated savings: $12,671 over 20 years

● CO2 emissions savings:

○ 9 metric tonnes annually

○ 180 metric tonnes over 20 years

● PV system cost: $38,235

● Energy usage covered: 99%

● Payback period: 14 years

● System size: 12.5 kW

● Estimated savings: $18,037 over 20 years

● CO2 emissions savings:

○ 12 metric tonnes annually

○ 240 metric tonnes over 20 years

Ryckman Park Restroom

● PV system cost: $27,135

● Energy usage covered: 90%

● Payback period: 17 years

● System size: 8.8 kW

● Estimated savings: $4384 over 20 years

● CO2 emissions savings:

○ 7 metric tonnes annually

○ 140 metric tonnes over 20 years

28



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 8

Local Solar Installations

Satellite Beach City Hall

● 83 kW System

● Ballasted Roof System

● SunPower by esaSolar

City of Cape Canaveral Community Center:

● PV system cost: $121,440

● Payback period: 13 years

● System size: 47 kilowatts

● Estimated savings: $242,525 over 25 years

● CO2 emissions savings: 1,343 metric tons over 25 years

● Construction start date: Fall 2021

● 15 Lightyears

CAPE Center:

● PV system cost: $53,850

● Payback period: 13 years

● System size: 33 kilowatts

● Estimated savings: $108,000 over 25 years

● CO2 emissions savings: 416 metric tons over 25 years

● Construction start date: Spring 2022

● 15 Lightyears

29



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 9

Public Works Services Administration Building:

● PV system cost: $18,489

● Payback period: 7 years

● System size: 10 kilowatts

● Estimated savings: $55,517 over 25 years

● CO2 emissions savings: 247 metric tons over 25 years

● Construction start date: Spring 2022

● 15 Lightyears

Brevard County Sheriff’s Office Building, Cape Canaveral Precinct:

● PV system cost: $94,276

● Payback period: 10 years

● System size: 47 kilowatts

● Estimated savings: $144,479 over 25 years

● CO2 emissions savings: 1,282 metric tons over 25 years

● Construction start date: Spring 2023

● 15 Lightyears

30



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 10

Solar Contacts

15 Lightyears

Website: 15lightyears.com

Phone: (855) 438-1515

Email: info@15lightyears.com

Address:

776 Bennett Drive, Suite 101

Longwood, Florida 32750

SUNPOWER by esaSolar

Website: esa-solar.com

Phone: (407) 329-5480

Email: info@esa-solar.com

Address:

2250 Lucien Way,

Maitland, FL 32751

Solar Energy Systems of Brevard

Website: 321gosolar.com

Phone: (321) 253-3232

Email: 321gosolar@gmail.com

Address:

1536 Cypress Ave,

Melbourne Florida, 32935

31



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 11

References

Case study - Satellite Beach city hall. esaSolar. (2021, November 24). Retrieved January 24,

2022, from https://esa-solar.com/commercial-solar/case-study-satellite-beach-city-hall/

CO2 emission reduction using Solar Power – Solar Mango Calculator. Solar Mango – #1 guide

for solar. (2017, June 13). Retrieved January 24, 2022, from

https://www.solarmango.com/in/tools/solar-carbon-emission-reduction

Cost of commercial solar panels & installation. Freedom Solar. (2021, April 22). Retrieved

November 10, 2021, from

https://freedomsolarpower.com/cost-of-commercial-solar-panels-and-installation.

Google. (2021). Project Sunroof. Retrieved November 10, 2021, from

https://sunroof.withgoogle.com/.

Javed, R. (2021, November 7). Payback Method. Accounting for Management. Retrieved

December 1, 2021, from https://www.accountingformanagement.org/payback-method/.

LED VS Fluorescent Tubes. metroLED. (2019, September 5). Retrieved December 1, 2021, from

https://metroled.ca/led-vs-fluorescent-tubes-comparison-in-energy-consumption-lighting-

performance-efficiency/.

32



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 12

McBride, B. (n.d.). Comparing led vs CFL vs incandescent light bulbs. Viri Bright. Retrieved

December 1, 2021, from

https://www.viribright.com/lumen-output-comparing-led-vs-cfl-vs-incandescent-wattage/

Town of Melbourne Beach Town Complex Image. (n.d.). One Sotheby's Realty. Retrieved

November 10, 2021, from https://www.onesothebysrealty.com/areas/melbourne-beach.

9.5kW Solar System Information. Solar Proof Quotes. (n.d.). Retrieved December 1, 2021, from

https://quotes.solarproof.com.au/system-sizes/9-5kw-solar-system-information-facts-figur

es/#:~:text=A%209.5kW%20solar%20system%20in%20Brisbane%20is%20expected,wh

at%20type%20of%20panels%20you%20use%20%28in%20part%29.

33



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 13

Appendix A: Energy Usage and Costs

Town Hall Complex

Monthly Energy Consumption Data

(based on FPL bills) in kWh

2019 2020 2021

January 15600 14880

February 13800 14760

March 14880 14400

April 17280 16560

May 18720 17640

June 22200 19440

July 24600 24360

August 21600 24240

September 23160 24000

October 23040 22080

November 20280 16800

December 18480 13200

Monthly Energy Cost Data

(based on FPL bills) in USD

2020 2021

January 1222

February 1228

March 1209

April 1347

May 1612

June 1763

July 1981 2065

August 1735 2082

September 1837 2056

October 1722

November 1436

December 1038

34



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 14

507 Ocean Ave Town Hall Complex

Energy

Consumption

(kWh)

Energy

Cost (US $)

Jul-20 24600 1981

Aug-20 21600 1735

Sep-20 23160 1837

Oct-20 22080 1722

Nov-20 16800 1436

Dec-20 13200 1038

Jan-21 14880 1222

Feb-21 14760 1228

Mar-21 14400 1209

Apr-21 16560 1347

May-21 17640 1612

Jun-21 19440 1763

Jul-21 24360 2065

Aug-21 24240 2082

Sep-21 24000 2056

Average

Monthly: 19448 1622

Average

Yearly: 233376 19467

Percentage covered by a

100 kW system: 58

35



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 15

Town Hall Complex Outdoor Lighting

Monthly Energy Consumption Data

(based on FPL bills) in kWh

2019 2020 2021

January 701 701

February 701 701

March 701 701

April 701 701

May 701 701

June 701 701

July 701 701

August 701 701

September 701 701

October 701 701

November 701 701

December 701 701

Monthly Energy Cost Data

(based on FPL bills) in USD

2020 2021

January 113

February 113

March 113

April 113

May 116

June 116

July 111 116

August 111 116

September 111 116

October 111

November 111

December 111

Average

Monthly: 113

36



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 16

Community Center

Monthly Energy Consumption Data

(based on FPL bills) in kWh

2019 2020 2021

January 921 875

February 1648 902

March 1023 916

April 1814 1612

May 2210 1395

June 2308 1645

July 3559 3402

August 3385 3575

September 3084 3384

October 2670 2414

November 1787 1865

December 953 832

Monthly Energy Cost Data

(based on FPL bills) in USD

2020 2021

January 97

February 100

March 101

April 169

May 154

June 179

July 349 359

August 333 376

September 304 357

October 205

November 189

December 91

37



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 17

509 Ocean Ave Community Center

Energy

Consumption

(kWh)

Energy

Cost (US $)

Jul-20 3559 349

Aug-20 3385 333

Sep-20 3084 304

Oct-20 2414 205

Nov-20 1865 189

Dec-20 832 91

Jan-21 875 97

Feb-21 902 100

Mar-21 916 101

Apr-21 1612 169

May-21 1395 154

Jun-21 1645 179

Jul-21 3402 359

Aug-21 3575 376

Sep-21 3384 357

Average

Monthly: 2190 224

38



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 18

Ryckman Park Restroom

Monthly Energy Consumption Data

(based on FPL bills) in kWh

2019 2020 2021

January 1177 772

February 1072 548

March 1138 524

April 955 669

May 803 648

June 1160 2343

July 1823 3000

August 1571 3032

September 1580 3138

October 1416 1354

November 1424 1409

December 1017 1355

Monthly Energy Cost Data

(based on FPL bills) in USD

2020 2021

January 87

February 65

March 63

April 77

May 78

June 251

July 318

August 161 320

September 162 332

October 140

November 145

December 140

39



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 19

517 Ocean Ave Ryckman Park

Restroom

Energy

Consumption

(kWh)

Energy

Cost (US

$)

Aug-20 1571 161

Sep-20 1580 162

Oct-20 1354 140

Nov-20 1409 145

Dec-20 1355 140

Jan-21 772 87

Feb-21 548 65

Mar-21 524 63

Apr-21 669 77

May-21 648 78

Jun-21 2343 251

Jul-21 3000 318

Aug-21 3032 320

Sep-21 3138 332

Average

Monthly: 1567 167

40



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 20

23751 Oak St. Williams Building

Monthly Energy Consumption Data

(based on FPL bills) in kWh

2019 2020 2021

January 153 82

February 149 86

March 209 79

April 357 129

May 395 235

June 523 429

July 958 609

August 683 625

September 625 500

October 433 413

November 201 161

December 163 102

Monthly Energy Cost Data

(based on FPL bills) in USD

2020 2021

January 20

February 20

March 19

April 24

May 36

June 55

July 103 74

August 77 75

September 71 63

October 51

November 27

December 21

41



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 21

2371 Oak St. Williams Building

Energy

Consumption

(kWh)

Energy

Cost (US $)

Jul-20 958 103

Aug-20 683 77

Sep-20 625 71

Oct-20 413 51

Nov-20 161 27

Dec-20 102 21

Jan-21 82 20

Feb-21 86 20

Mar-21 79 19

Apr-21 129 24

May-21 235 36

Jun-21 429 55

Jul-21 609 74

Aug-21 625 75

Sep-21 500 63

Average

Monthly: 381 49

42



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 22

190 Ocean Ave Beach Restroom

Monthly Energy Consumption Data

(based on FPL bills) in kWh

2019 2020 2021

January 216 209

February 195 176

March 194 177

April 194 193

May 209 176

June 196 170

July 207 178

August 181 207

September 180 238

October 198 187

November 208 177

December 207 176

Monthly Energy Cost Data

(based on FPL bills) in USD

2020 2021

January 32

February 29

March 29

April 30

May 29

June 29

July 31 30

August 29 33

September 29 35

October 29

November 28

December 28

43



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 23

190 Ocean Ave

Energy

Consumption

(kWh)

Energy

Cost (US $)

Jul-20 207 31

Aug-20 181 29

Sep-20 180 29

Oct-20 187 29

Nov-20 177 28

Dec-20 176 28

Jan-21 209 32

Feb-21 176 29

Mar-21 177 29

Apr-21 193 30

May-21 176 29

Jun-21 170 29

Jul-21 178 30

Aug-21 207 33

Sep-21 238 35

Average

Monthly: 189 30

44



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 24

Appendix B: Payback Period Calculations

Payback Period Calculation

Building

System Size

(kW)

Initial

Investment

($)

Annual Cost

of Energy w/

Solar ($)

Annual Cost

of Energy

w/o Solar ($)

Annual

Savings ($)

Payback

Period

(Years)

Town Hall

Complex 28 84115 17824 24127 6303 13

Town Hall

Complex &

Public Works

Roof 42 126000 11687 24127 12439 10

Community

Center

Smaller

Installation 9.5 29355 1046 3298 2253 13

Community

Center 12.5 38235 484 3298 2814 14

Ryckman

Restroom 8.8 27135 595 2171 1576 17

Simple Payback Period = Initial Investment/Annual Savings

Annual Savings = (Cost of Energy w/o Solar) - (Cost of Energy w/Solar)

The simple payback period is the time it will take for the savings to pay for the initial

investment.

45



Energy Conservation and Solar Energy 25

Appendix C: Light Bulb Comparison

Light Bulb Comparison

Bulb Type

Operational

Wattage Annual kWh

Annual Cost

Per Bulb ($)

LED Tube 16 33 3.19

Fluorescent

Tube 43 89 8.60

LED Bulb 7 15 1.45

Fluorescent

Bulb 10 21 2.03

Incandescent

Bulb 40 83 8.02

Annual kWh based on a 40-hour workweek.

Annual cost based on an electricity cost of $0.10/kWh.

46



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: Boards & Committees 

Meeting Date: 02/16/2022 

Subject:  Town Board Appointments & Reappointments 

Submitted By: Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 

Background Information:  

Currently we have one member of the Environmental Advisory Board whose term is expiring. 
He submitted a new application to continue his service. He is: 

- Curtis Byrd (current Chairman of the Environmental Advisory Board)  

We have one new applicant for the Planning & Zoning Board. He is:  

- Dan Harper 

Currently the Town has two seats opening up on the Planning & Zoning Board. The two currently 
seated members have submitted a new application asking to be reappointed to the Planning & 
Zoning Board. They are:  

- Dave Campbell (current Planning & Zoning Chairman) 
- April Evans (Planning & Zoning Board Member) 

The Town has two members of the Board of Adjustment whose term is ending within the month. 
They have each submitted a new application asking to be reappointed to the Board of Adjustment. 
They are:  

- Robert Schaefer (current BOA Chairman) 
- Xochitl Ross (BOA member)  

Currently we have one member of the Police Pension Board whose term is expiring. He 
submitted a new application to continue his service. He is: 

- James Maguire 

Recommendation: 

Consider the volunteer applications. 

Attachments:  
- Application for new applicant, Dan Harper for Planning & Zoning Board  
- Application for reappointment Curtis Byrd, Environmental Advisory Board 
- Application for reappointment Dave Campbell, Planning & Zoning Board 
- Application for reappointment April Evans, Planning & Zoning Board 

47



- Application for reappointment Robert Schaefer, Board of Adjustment 
- Application for reappointment Xochitl Ross, Board of Adjustment 
- Application for reappointment James Maguire, Police Pension Board 

 
 

 

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



Board Attendance 

Planning & Zoning  

April Evans  

• 2020 (1 absence) - attended 8 
• 2021 (1 absence)  - attended 9 

David Campbell 

• 2020 (0 absences)  
• 2021 (0 absences) 

Board of Adjustment 

Robert Schaefer  

• 2020 (0 absences)  
• 2021 (0 absences) 

Xochitl Ross 

• 2020 (absent 3/3) 
• 2021 (absent 1/2) - attended 1 

57



58



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: Boards & Committees 

Meeting Date: 02/16/2022 

Subject:  Appointment to the Melbourne Beach Library Advisory Board  

Submitted By: Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 

Background Information:  

Former Commissioner Steve Walters previously served as a member of the Melbourne 
Beach Library Advisory Board. His two-year-term is up and the Commission is required 
to appoint another board member to serve. A member of the Commission could serve or 
the Commission could appoint a resident of the Town to serve. The Board normally meets 
quarterly on the fourth Wednesday of the month in January, April, July, and October at 
9:00 a.m. at the Melbourne Beach Public Library. 

Recommendation: 

Appoint a member of the Commission to serve or direct the Town Clerk to advertise the 
vacancy and seek a resident of the Town to serve.  

Attachments:   

• Melbourne Beach Library Advisory Board By-Laws 
• Melbourne Beach Library Advisory Board Member Job Description 

 
 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



 

 
 

MELBOURNE LIBRARY BOARD JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

A member of the Melbourne Library Board performs several duties and assumes numerous 
responsibilities in keeping with the missions of the Brevard County Public Library System and 
the City Council of the City of Melbourne.  To be an effective member, he or she must be both 
active and informed. 
 

AN ACTIVE MEMBER: 
 
1. Attends monthly board meetings.  Prepares for each meeting by reviewing the agenda, 

reports and background information.  Participates in the conduct of the board’s business 
by contributing knowledge and opinions. 

 
2. Serves on the board’s committees and attends training events. 
 
3. Provides leadership to the board by serving as Chairman or Vice Chairman, if so elected. 
 
4. Develops and maintains relations and a positive rapport with local governmental officials, 

library staff, Friends groups and community leaders. 
 
5. Advocates for the library in his or her daily activity in the community and at the local, 

state, and national levels (as appropriate). 
 
6. Contributes time and enthusiasm to the best of his or her ability. 
 

AN INFORMED MEMBER: 
 
1. Understands the libraries’ mission, service roles, and long-range plans and articulates 

these to the community and patrons and users. 
 
2. Understands the libraries’ roles and relationships between the Library Board, the Board 

of County Commissioners, the County’s Library Administration, the Library Directors and 
their respective staffs, the City Council and the Friends groups. 

 
3. Is familiar with the libraries’ statistics that describe their resources, level of activities and 

how the Melbourne libraries compare with the state standards and other libraries serving 
similar communities. 

 
4. Is aware of the Melbourne libraries’ funding sources and the role of each source in 

supporting the libraries’ programs of service. 
 
5. Maintains an understanding of library policies and how each library implements them in 

their respective daily activities. 
 
6. Is familiar with intellectual freedom principles, the libraries’ intellectual freedom policies 

and how they are applied. 
 
7. Is familiar with library laws and state and federal funding programs. 
 

66



 

 
 

8. Develops and maintains knowledge of library issues on the local, regional, state and 
national levels by reading library literature and periodicals and by attending library 
association meetings. 

 
9. Understands interlibrary cooperation and resource sharing among libraries and each 

library’s role in regional, state and national networks and consortia. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

67



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: Consent 

Meeting Date: February 16, 2022 

Subject:   Approval of draft meeting minutes (2) and site plans (2) 

Submitted By: Town Clerk 

Background Information:  

The Site Plans for both 406 First Avenue and 208 Second Avenue were approved by the 
Planning & Zoning Board at the regular meeting on February 1, 2022 

Recommendation: 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

.Attachments:   

• Town Commission Workshop Draft Minutes for 1/12/2022 
• Town Commission Regular Meeting Draft Minutes for 1/19/2022 
• Site Plan Approval for 406 First Avenue 
• Site Plan Approval for 208 Second Avenue 

 
 

68



 

Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

TOWN COMMISSION WORKSHOP 

 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

MASNY ROOM, 507 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
 
 

Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton  
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69



 
1. Call to Order 

 
 Mayor Hoover called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call  
 
  Town Clerk Jennifer Torres conducted Roll Call:  
 

Commissioners Present:   Staff Present: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover   Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton  Town Clerk Jennifer Torres   
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie   
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker  

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

 
  Led by Mayor Hoover 

 
4. Public Comments 

 
 

5. New Business  
 

A. Consideration of proposal from Dix-Hite to provide professional design 
services for the Melbourne Beach Business District Corridor. 

 

Town Manager Mascaro presented the proposal provided by Dix-Hite for the 
Commission’s consideration.  

She expressed that one of her concerns is that the Town has not pinpointed its vision 
and perhaps the Commission should be more specific as to exactly what the Town is 
looking for.  

Mayor Hoover said he believes going through a process like this with the support of 
an organization like Dix-Hite is important. As the Town has seen in the past, 
historically the Commission has not done a great job of applying foresight or being 
proactive. In the last ten years the dynamic of the region is changing rapidly – along 
with the Town of Melbourne Beach. Existing resident have things about the Town 
they love – small town feel, etc. And we have a challenge with restrictive codes to 
make any improvements in certain areas. If we don’t find a way to bend a little bit – 
he is concerned that it only take a couple of people to get on the Commission and 
turn the area into Cocoa Beach.  Pedestrian and bicycle safety are important – as well 
as aesthetics. Landscaping and lighting are important, as is functionality. It’s a 
complete bottleneck on A1A. In the charter, our businesses are described as those 

70



that will support the Town of Melbourne Beach and he noted that he would like to 
find a way to help those businesses cater to the community a little more – and 
provide a way for the community to have easier access to the businesses safely.  

Access for low-speed vehicles and bicycles is important.  

Commissioner Quarrie said the challenge is getting what we want in a form that is a 
visual aid that reflects all of our conversations.  We have the need for more golf cart 
spaces, bicycle crossings, better pedestrian safety, etc. We need to put our vision into 
a visual aid that everyone can see and then we can solicit community input. Dix-Hite 
should be able to do something along those lines. Bring us up to date with what is 
going on in other small communities – and implement that visual so we have 
something we can build. A picture is worth a thousand words and added that she 
thinks the mission should be to get that picture.   

Town Manager Mascaro said Dix-Hite would provide the steps we need to execute 
the plan. 

Mayor Hoover said that’s what we need – a professional, experienced organization to 
bring this vision forth as a facilitator.  

Town Manager Mascaro reminded the Commission that the Town has no control 
over the west side of Ocean Avenue – however they can work with officials to come 
to a common vision.  

Mayor Hoover agreed that a visual would allow us to have more control over sharing 
the Town vision with everyone.  

Commissioner Runte said he thinks there are a lot of residents that are confused as 
to what the beautification process is. There are several parts; what we are talking 
about tonight is the first part - a complete streets project. Let’s not confuse it with 
outdoor dining. This is a master vision for our main corridor. I think we should be 
proactive with FDOT. He believes the Town should get one other proposal from a 
comparable firm. He’d like to see very specific examples from other towns and cities. 
He wants an example of each deliverable. It’s a lot of work to do it right and he does 
think it’s money well spent as long as we get a comparable proposal which he would 
want to include Ocean Avenue and our public areas. He suggested they look at 
crossovers, Bicentennial Park and Circle Park as well. This would truly be a master 
plan of usable space.  

Commissioner Quarrie asked if would be possible to have the scope of work cover the 
entire Town.  

Commissioner Runte said that is too expansive.  

71



Town Manager Mascaro said that may be part of a phase two – but putting it all 
together in one scope of work initially may be overwhelming.  

Commissioner Walker said she felt it was best to separate it out – and begin with 
Ocean. Also, emphasize we are looking at the public – not the private area.  

Commissioner Runte said if we create a vision and then allow the public to comment 
and contribute – we can create a good design.  

Commissioner Walker said residents have asked her why we want to spend this 
money. She said, for her, she wants to slow things down and make things safer – and 
while doing that we can beautify and make it more cohesive.  

Commissioner Runte said we have to repave and repaint all utilities in the next few 
years – so why not create a better design.  

Mayor Hoover said in regard to people misinterpreting the mission of this project – 
this is not designed to help the businesses make more money – but we do want to 
improve access for residents and businesses. People need to get to – and use – those 
businesses – this project will improve access and improve our ability to get to those 
businesses in a myriad of ways.  

Commissioner Runte said 95-percent of the residents he’s spoken to, want Ocean 
Avenue beautified and ask why there are so many vacant and dilapidated properties 
in a thriving community.  

Commissioner Walker agreed and said if the Town doesn’t see us doing anything 
what is their incentive? This will help motivate them. She emphasized her concern 
that something needs to be done about pedestrian safety.  

Commissioner Runte said there are also a lot of matching fund grants we can pursue.  

Town Manager Mascaro said this is the first time the Commission has articulated 
this is not just beautification – but also safety and maybe we need to think of a 
different phrase that better describes what we are doing. Beautification is part of it – 
but there is a whole safety component that is important.  

A few suggestions were made as to what the program could be called.  

 

 

 

 

72



Public Comment 

Neil Tompkins 
2004 Neptune Drive 

 

Mr. Tomkins has been part of Melbourne Beach many years. He agrees with 
everything the Commission just said. He wanted to know if they created an RFP, 
which is a complete collection of everything defined before you go solicit a proposal. 
He thought they all have the right idea. Now you need to consolidate all of that into a 
document, so that these discussions do not have to come up again and again. 
Number two, he said they need to make the budgetary plan transparent and you will 
need a point person to work with these outside consultants. Also, make sure you 
have a contingency. You want the design team and the construction team in step. 
That relationship has to be sustained. In addition, you need competitive bids. He 
went on to say, the Commission may want to consider other parties who are working 
on improvements to the lagoon – which may be beneficial to the Town’s goals.  

Commissioner Runte said he wanted to say there will be no conflict of interest and he 
will not be involved in any of the work that occurs in Town. He asked Mr. & Mrs. 
Tompkins if they felt Ocean Avenue needed an update. 

Mr. Tompkins heartily agreed it does. Part of the Town is charming and part is 
derelict.  

Mayor Hoover asked if the Commission agrees to a more structured RFP.  

Commissioner Runte agreed.  

Town Manager Mascaro said she will look at other companies for comparable 
organizations. 

Mr. Tompkins said you need to get everything into written form and include 
everything you want within it. He volunteered to assist in the process. 

David McClure 
401 2nd Avenue 
 
Mr. McClure thought tonight’s discussion has been great and productive and he 
agrees with almost everything – with the exception of increasing the scope. He 
believes the scope should be kept small and manageable. 
 
 
 
 
 

73



Alison Dennington  
413 Surf 
 
Ms. Dennington suggested the Commission form a committee who can get 
together and share residents’ concerns and opinions. She thinks doing an RFP is 
a great idea – but the devil is in the details. You need to have an experienced 
person handle the RFP. You should require two workshop groups – and as for 
site plan visits – if they are only looking at one specific time – they may not get a 
feel for the entire space. She asked if we had certain data that was required. She 
asked if we have conferred with Satellite Beach and suggested the Commission 
does.  
 
Commissioner Runte said this is more a master plan/vision for a downtown area 
not really comparable with what Satellite Beach did.  
 
Ms. Dennington said she thought it would be nice to be provided with a summary 
report with the RFP. She agreed the focus and theme should be pedestrian safety, 
storm water and beautification. Lastly, she wanted to say regardless of who we 
use, she wanted to see examples of their past work.  
 
Town Manager Mascaro suggested the word – calming.  
 
Mayor Hoover said he agrees with the comments focusing just on Ocean Avenue 
at this time.  
 
Commissioner Runte said we have to repave Ocean Park in a few years – so that 
has to be kept in mind – and perhaps it should be included. He can’t imagine it 
would be that much more and it is part of the whole area.  
 
Town Manager Mascaro said we can look at that and see what cost would be. We 
can also look for grant money to supplement that and may be able to use some of 
the American funds for that.  
 
Mayor Hoover said in regard to the scope – Ocean Avenue from the river to the 
Ocean including access and parking to Ocean Park. 
 
Vice Mayor Hoover suggested “Ocean Avenue Safety and Sustainability Program” 
 
Mayor Hoover suggested “Ocean Avenue Vision; safety, accessibility and storm 
water.”  
 
Use of the word downtown was suggested.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie suggested Ocean Avenue Pedestrian and Lagoon Safety.  
 
Ms. Dennington suggested the use of the acronym SEA: Ocean Avenue Mission: 
SEA project (safety – environment – accessibility).  

74



 
Commissioner Runte said Ocean Avenue Vision should lead the acronym.  
Mayor Hoover likes the use of the word downtown.  
 
Vice Mayor Barton said – and a downtown is unique to us – Satellite Beach does 
not have one.  She added that Melbourne Beach is a very special place.  
 
Ms. Dennington suggested striping the area by the new stop signs.   
 
Town Manager Mascaro said she will bring a few names and a summary to the 
next RTCM and the issue can be discussed further at the February workshop.  
 
Commissioner Runte moved to adjourn; Commissioner Quarrie 
seconded; Motion carried 5-0.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. Adjournment 

75



Town of Melbourne Beach 
REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

JANUARY 19, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Attorney Cliff Repperger  
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

76



 
1. Call to Order 

 
Mayor Hoover called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call 
 
Town Clerk Torres conducted the roll call 
 

Commission Members Present 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 
 
Commissioner Members Absent 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
 
Staff Members Present 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
Public Works Director Tom Davis 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Mayor Hoover led the Pledge of Allegiance  
 

4. Public Comments 
 

After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their 
name and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare 
their comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address 
the Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business not on the Agenda.   

 
 

5. Approval of the Agenda  
 
Due to the excused absence of Vice Mayor Barton, her item under New Business 9-A, 
Consideration of Proclamation to Recognize Human Trafficking Awareness Month, will 

77



be taken of the agenda and postponed until the February RTCM. Mayor Hoover 
requested that Item 6-D under the Consent Agenda, Site Plan Approval for 419 Avenue 
B, be removed from the Consent Agenda and set under New Business 9-A, replacing the 
former item. He stated that information had come to his attention that required further 
discussion related to this site plan.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the Agenda with the changes 
noted; Commission Walker seconded; Motion carried 3-0. 

 
6. Consent Agenda   

A. Approval of December 15, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes  
B. Site Plan Approval for 407 3rd Avenue 

 
Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the Consent Agenda as edited; 
Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 3-0. 

 
7. Old Business  

 
A. Approval of tentative S.E.A. Project F/K/A Beautification Project Vision Statement 

– Town Manager Mascaro  
 
During the recent workshop, Town Manager Mascaro said, the Commission decided the 
term “beautification” did not cover all aspects of what the Town wanted the project to 
encompass and express. Melbourne Beach resident, Neil Tompkins who attended the 
workshop, has since assisted with preparing a new vision statement which states – “The 
vision of this project is to sustain the Town’s character while addressing its needs.” 
Resident, Alison Dennington, who also attended the workshop, came up with the acronym 
S.E.A. to stand for Safe, Environmental and Ecological and Attractive and Accessible.  
Town Manager Mascaro asked the Commission for approval of this vision statement, so 
they can move forward with the concept and go to the next step in the process which would 
include contacting other agencies.  
 
Commissioner Quarried moved to approve the vision statement and go 
forward with the project; Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 
3-0. 
 
Town Manager Mascaro thanked Mr. Tompkins and Ms. Dennington for their 
contributions.  

 
8. New Business 

 
A. Site Plan Approval for 419 Avenue B 

Mayor Hoover said the reason he requested this site plan was taken off the consent 
agenda was due to some significant irregularities in the process and in the way the 
information was presented. Work has begun on the project because of an 

78



inappropriately approved tree removal permit. As a result the current site plans do not 
reflect what the site currently looks like. There is a concern related to subverting the 
authority of the Commission to have oversight over building project approval.  

Mayor Hoover asked Town Manager Mascaro to explain the situation.  

Town Manager Mascaro introduced Robert Bitgood – who will serve as the new Building 
Official. She recently accompanied him to look at the site. They pulled the plans and 
assessed what happened. In the past the Building Department has issued tree removal 
permits prior to the Commission reviewing site plans. That process has now been 
changed. Nothing should be done to any property without advance. Commission 
approval. The process will now include a site plan visit and a survey of the tree line.  

Further discussion ensued.  

The next concern was the interpretation of the code based on what was done. There has 
been citizen concern over the removal of trees. She had conversations with the Town 
Attorney and recommends the Commission fine tune the code.  

Town Attorney Repperger said there was a tree removal permit filed – although it did 
not articulate the basis for why the trees were removed. Under Section 9-A which deals 
with tree removal – provides the reasons why trees can be removed. He reviewed them.  

In this case, the site plan that’s submitted is code compliant – although the separate 
application for tree removal does not state the rational – which is a required element – 
but he would assume they were in the buildable area.  

He explained that while the Commission may disagree with a site plan – if it is code 
compliant – they can voice opinion but they can’t deny it just based on that opinion.  

Mayor Hoover said the tree removal permit was improperly approved given the criteria 
provided.  

From a process standpoint moving forward, Mayor Hoover said there must be a reason 
listed for the removal of each tree.  

He went on to say that it’s important to preserve the mature trees in Town because they 
serve an important purpose. A mature Oak tree – such as the ones removed on this 
property – have a root system that provides a habitat. They also help with stormwater 
percolation, and create less runoff into lagoon – in addition they assist the environment 
with a process known as transpiration. From an erosion standpoint, a mature root 
structure is very beneficial to the community.   

79



He said trading trees for swales in counterproductive. His suggestion is to include items 
A-D from the tree permit which lists the circumstances under which trees can be 
removed - in a building site review.   

Town Attorney Repperger said if there is a tree permit and a site plan approval coming 
in together – they should move together. If staff had seen this many trees being removed 
on this particular site plan they would have required them to submit a tree removal 
permit.  

Some discussion ensued as to site plan reviews vs. tree permits and the Town Attorney 
said in this case – the rational for the tree removal was not indicated – but it’s safe to 
assume they were in the buildable area.  

Commissioner Quarrie went over a few details of the original paperwork – and said it 
does reference the fact that new construction is the reason they wanted to get rid of the 
trees. The failure was to bring together the drainage information and the percolation 
information in order to save the trees. Instead they bulldozed over them and put in a 
swale.  

Town Attorney Repperger said the current tree permit removal does not give the 
applicant an opportunity to adequately describe the circumstances of the removal.  

Mayor Hoover said in regard to “no net loss” – two hardwoods does not comply and he 
asked the Town Attorney if they can say that and send it back to applicant to cure.  

Town Attorney Repperger said the Commission could say - We want the applicant to 
explain or demonstrate why there is no net loss here – or in the alternative modify the 
plan to include the concept of no net loss.  

Commissioner Walker asked for clarification on the process. Town Attorney Repperger 
said if the site plan is code compliant, the Commission cannot deny the plan based on its 
own judgement. However, asking for clarification or a reworking of the plan based on 
noncompliance is permissible. Replacement being sufficient is a different issue – and 
the Commission can ask about that.  

The Town Manager asked if they can they put in place – stronger language based on tree 
age, height, etc.  

Mayor Hoover said the code needs to have some specificity over what trees should be 
protected.  

He went on to make the suggestion that they add this site plan and issue to the 
workshop next month to address, clarify and streamline the intent of the code as it 
pertains to the building process and amend the tree removal application to include the 
language in the code, individual articulation of each tree removed. He suggested they 

80



table this site plan and give the owner the opportunity to identify with how they are 
moving forward with respect to mitigation of their tree removal permit and how they 
will comply with no net loss.  

Commissioner Quarrie added – and also that they cannot do anything further to the lot.  

Town Manager Mascaro said she does not consider the builder to be at blame – their 
intent was not to subvert the process. The current situation is more a factor of the 
current building process in place at Town Hall.  

Commissioner Quarrie wondered by the Planning & Zoning Board did not catch this. 
She added she had every confidence in the Chairman but questioned what happened.  

Mayor Hoover said Planning & Zoning and Board of Adjustment are volunteers serving 
these roles and perhaps they need to have more training and resources from Town Hall.  

Commissioner Quarrie moved to table the application of 419 Avenue B and 
to require the owner/builder to demonstrate the mitigation associated with 
the tree removal application and compliance with the no net loss 
requirements in 9A6-B2; Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 
3-0. 

B. Consideration of updating the Town Code of Ordinances to include a 
Definition of Kitchen  - Town Manager Mascaro  

 
The Commission was presented with a definition of the term “kitchen” which was 
formulate by the Planning & Zoning Board for consideration of inclusion in the 
Town Code.  
 
The definition read: 
 

Kitchen means any indoor room or area containing all of the following 
equipment,: Sink and/or other device for dish washing, stove or other 
device for cooking, refrigerator or other device for cool storage of food, 
cabinets and/or shelves for storage of equipment. 

 
Town Manager Mascaro explained that the Planning & Zoning Board felt it was 
important to define “kitchen” in the code in an effort to help prohibit single-
family residences from turning into multi-family units.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie said she felt the definition was good – however they must 
be careful about granny suites. This is a tax relief for those with elderly parents 
who live with them. These suites may include kitchens and the definition should 
state that these granny suites are exempt.  

81



Mayor Hoover said he feels that the definition will have the effect desired because 
there is no way to regulate it. He pointed to the inclusion of the wording – “or 
other devices” which he felt is vague.  
 
He went on to say that for the expense it would take to modify the code – some 
additional research for specific ways they can identify what they are trying to 
prohibit through the inspection process would need to occur. In addition, there 
would need to be a lot for specificity as opposed to using the language “and other 
devices.” 
 
Commissioner Walker said she does not see the problem with a second kitchen in 
the house. If her mother came to live with her – she would want to add another 
sink, etc. Multi-generational living is life right now.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie said she understands the intent Planning & Zoning had. 
 
Town Attorney Repperger said he also viewed the definition as broad – and 
suggested they remove the verbiage “or other devices.” He said typically the 
trigger that alerts to a kitchen is the installation of a stove – not a microwave, etc.  
 
Town Manager Mascaro said that Planning & Zoning Board also tasked her with 
looking at the definition for multi-generational living. 
 
Mayor Hoover suggested they remove the “or other device” language and stick to 
things that can be identified through the permitting process.   
 
Town Attorney Repperger said if the Commission is interested in amending he 
code to include a definition of kitchen – they can modify what’s here, send it back 
to Planning & Zoning, or state that they are not interested in moving forward 
with a change at this time. The process for changing the code would entail the 
creation of an Ordinance.  
 
Mayor Hoover suggested sending it back to the Board for research and 
rewording. 
 
Commissioner Quarrie disagreed and said they should table it and consider 
whether the Commission would like to reword it at a future workshop.  
 
Mayor Hoover agreed.  
 

82



Town Manager Mascaro offered to conduct some research on the term multi-
generational and the use of granny suites in other municipalities.  
 
New Action Item: Research multi-generational, granny suite situation.  
 
C. Consideration of Finance Resolution 2022-01 -Budget Amendment related to 

Transfer Expenditures within the General Fund – Finance Manager Kerr 
 
Finance Manager Kerr gave a brief overview of Resolution 2022-01.  
 

Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve Resolution 2022-01; 
Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 3-0.  

 
D. Consideration of allowing temporary structural donation to Fire Department 

for firefighter training purposes before demolition – Fire Chief Brown 
 
Due to illness, Fire Chief Gavin Brown was not present at the meeting. Town Manager 
Mascaro explained the agenda item in his absence. When a house is scheduled to be torn 
down, the Fire Department could use the property for training. This request is for 
approval to include a one page letter in the demolition permit soliciting the request for a 
temporary structural donation to the Fire Department for the purpose of training.  
 
The Commission unanimously agreed it was a good idea.  
 

Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the request for a temporary 
structural donation; Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 
3-0. 
 

12. Staff Reports  
A. Town Attorney Report 

 
Town Attorney Repperger stated that at the last meeting he was tasked with looking at 
restrictions at Ryckman Park related to I-9. After review, his opinion is that the lots are 
restricted for park use but that doesn’t mean they are restricted from commercial 
activity. They are required to be kept open for park use – but I-9 describes what is 
allowable.  Some discussion ensued related to special events and restrictions on 
commercial use.  
 

B. Town Manager Report  
 
Town Manager Mascaro said the software the Town recently purchased is fantastic and 
will allow for the automation of accounting and reporting. She thanked the Commission 
for approving its purchase. 
 

83



She went on to ask for clarification related to Parks Board requests and events and 
whether she was required to get Commission approval ahead of time – or if she had 
authority to approve these items.  
 
Mayor Hoover felt the items should come before the Commission for approval and 
asked the other Commissioners what their feeling were. 
 
Commissioner Walker felt the Town Manager should have the authority to approve 
these items considering they are already budgeted for.  
 
Further discussion ensued and the Commission reached a consensus that the Town 
Manager should have the authority to oversee decisions related to Parks Department 
events and issues that are budgeted for.  
 

C. Town Clerk Report  
 

Mayor Hoover asked for an update on the sound system in the Community Center. 
Town Clerk Torres said she has previously presented the Commission with an estimate 
and at the time it was presented the Commission thought it was too expensive.  
 
Mayor Hoover asked to have replacement of the Community Center sound system added 
to the Action Items.  
 
 

D. Departmental Reports 
1. Building Department  
2. Public Works Department  

 
Public Works Director Davis gave an update on the recently obtained bike racks and 
picnic tables. He also ordered filters that are placed in the storm curb that will stop large 
debris. If they are successful, he would like to get them for every storm cover.  
 

3. Code Enforcement  
4. Police Department  

 
The Commission welcomed new police officer Leon Bennet to the department.  
 

5. Fire Department  
 
Town Manager Mascaro said Dave Micka has been named Space Coast Volunteer Fire 
Fighter of the Year and will receive an award January 28, 2022. She went on to say he 
has been with the department forever and does a lot for the Town. He submits many of 
the grants the Fire Department has won – and he gives a lot to the Town.  
 

6. Finance Department  
 

84



Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the Finance Report; 
Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 3-0. 

 
13.    Town Commission Comments   

A. General Comments 
B. Review of Commission Action List  

 
Updated Items 
 

• Change the name of Action Item: Research Ocean Avenue Beautification & 
Landscaping to: The S.E.A. Project – update again at February RTCM. 

• Research Golf Cart Parking & Bike Racks: PWD gave update and asked for input.  
 
Closed Items 
 

• Research Crosswalks – completed 
• Research Pool Installation Process – completed 

 
14.   Adjournment 
 

Commissioner Quarrie moved to adjourn; Commissioner Walker seconded; 
Motion carried 3-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 9 p.m. 

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
 

Section:  Old Business    

Meeting Date:  February 16, 2022 

Subject: Site Plan for 419 Avenue B  

Submitted By:   Building Department 

 

Background Information:  

The Site Plan for 419 Avenue B was originally on the Consent Agenda of the January 
RTCM. It was tabled for further review and more detailed information.  

      
Recommendation:  Review site plan and landscaping plan 
    

Attachments:  

• Site plan for 419 Avenue B 
• Landscaping plan for 419 Avenue B   

 

146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: February 16, 2022 

Subject:  Letter in support of the Founders Monument project  

Submitted By: Mayor Wyatt Hoover 

Background Information:  

This letter is to support the grassroots Concerned Citizens Committee of South Brevard 
proposes to create a $400,000 public monument featuring bronze statues of Wright, 
Brothers and Allen atop a podium at Riverview Park, to honor three freed slaves: Peter 
Wright, Wright Brothers, and Balaam Allen. The original settlers of predecessor 
community Crane Creek, they founded homesteads near the mouth of the pristine river 
between 1867 and the mid-1870s. 

 

Recommendation: 

Approve letter of support 

. 

Attachments:   

• Letter of support 
 
 

186



 

 

 

 

Thursday, February 10, 2022 

Subject:  Letter of Support of the Founders Monument Project 

 

To Whom It May Concern, 

I am writing this letter to address my support of the Founders Monument project.  I am excited 
about supporting this historical project that honors and commemorates the three black men 
who were the founders and first settlers of the town originally known as Crane Creek, FL. 

I believe the erection of the Founders Monument will inspire a sense of interest and pride for 
Brevard County, the State of Florida, and American citizens who understand the value and 
significance of preserving and remembering history. I believe the Founders Monument will also 
be a symbol of pride for Melbourne’s and Florida’s black citizens, who are the descendants of 
the first settlers.   

I believe the Founders Monument’s historical significance of the three black founders will also 
give black youth a sense of pride and will most likely positively impact their self-esteem and 
self-worth.   

In closing, I support this project. I am willing to offer financial support to help the process of 
completing this project. 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Wyatt Hoover 
Mayor 
Town of Melbourne Beach 
507 Ocean Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, FL  32951 
 

 

187



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: February 16, 2022 

Subject:  Proclamation for Human Trafficking Awareness Month January  
   2022 

Submitted By: Vice Mayor Barton 

Background Information:  

January 2022 has been designated as National Human Trafficking Awareness and 
 Prevention Month by the Federal Government. This proclamation serves to inspire 
education and awareness.   

 
Recommendation: 

• Approve Proclamation establishing January 2022 as Human Trafficking 
Awareness Month in the Town of Melbourne Beach  

. 

Attachments:   

• Proclamation for Human Trafficking Awareness Month January 2022  
 
 

188



HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH 
 January 2021  
 
IT IS HEREBY PROCLAIMED BY THE MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, that: 
 

WHEREAS, January 2022 has been designated as National Human Trafficking 
Awareness and Prevention Month by the Federal Government; and 

 
WHEREAS, human trafficking is the illegal trade in human beings, a public health 

and humanitarian issue, a form of modern-day slavery and a crime against humanity 
that violates the most basic human rights and deprives victims of their freedom, and 
 

WHEREAS, human trafficking is the recruitment, harboring, transporting, 
providing, or obtaining of a person for the purpose of a commercial sex act, labor or 
services induced by force, fraud, or coercion, or in which the person induced to perform 
such act has not attained 18 years of age, and 

 
WHEREAS, there are three main forms of trafficking: sex trafficking, labor 

trafficking and organ trafficking.  Most awareness and information focuses on the first 
two, but all three exist, and 
 

WHEREAS, over 45 million people are being trafficked worldwide and the United 
States is one of the worst countries globally with an estimated 199,000 incidents 
occurring each year, and 

 
WHEREAS, Florida ranks third in the United States for human trafficking cases 

reported to the National Human Trafficking Resource Center, with the Central Region 
having the highest number of cases reported to FDCF, as human traffickers regard 
Florida as one of the most attractive destination and transit points for their victims, and 

 
WHEREAS, human trafficking has increased exponentially as the fastest growing 

and third largest international criminal enterprise behind illegal drugs and arms trades, 
generating over $150 billion dollars, specifically involving CSAM, pornography and 
online exploitation and often involves family members or those personally known to the 
victim, and  

 
WHEREAS, human trafficking community awareness initiatives, interventions 

and education of parents and caregivers are critical to the fabric of our society as the 
average age of recruitment into trafficking is 12-14 years of age and half of all trafficking 
victims are children, and 

 
WHEREAS, we commit ourselves to eradicating the evil of enslavement. Human 

trafficking is a modern form of the oldest and most barbaric type of exploitation and we 
proclaim it has no place in the world, our great nation, or our Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, more awareness and education are crucial to eradicating human 

trafficking in our communities, state, and nation; and 
 

WHEREAS, ANEW Life International (ANEW) is a local faith-based not-for-profit 
organization serving as a trusted partner to raise awareness, reduce vulnerability and 
provide resources and services to victims, survivors and our community, and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Wyatt Hoover, Mayor of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 
by virtue of the authority of said office, do hereby proclaim the month of January 2022 
as: 
 

HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH 
  
in the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, and urge all citizens to protect the vulnerable 
and end human trafficking through continued prevention, prosecution, education, and 
awareness and to send a strong message to perpetrators that Florida is a zero-tolerance 
state for all forms of human trafficking and that we are committed to protecting victims’ 
rights and restoring their dignity and freedom. 
 

 

189



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of 
the Town of Melbourne Beach to be affixed this Nineteenth day of January, Two 
Thousand Twenty-two. 
 
 
                                                            
Wyatt Hoover, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                         
Jennifer Torres, TOWN CLERK 

 
 

190



191



Town Commission Meeting 

Section:  New Business 

Meeting Date: February 16, 2022 

Subject: New Code of Ordinance for Outdoor Seating with Roof 

From:  Town Manager Mascaro 

Background Information:  

Over the course of the past 2 years, several of the Town’s merchants have requested expansion 
of their outdoor seating to better accommodate their patrons healthy/safety concerns.   

Our Code of Ordinances currently restricts the setback for zone 6B to: 

Front set back 25 feet from lot line. 

Side interior lot setback, none; provided a public access is available to the rear of 
the lot for trash removal and fire protection.  Otherwise the minimum side setback of 15 feet on 
one side of the structure is required 

Side Corner lot setback 20 feet from lot line. 

Rear setback, 20 feet from lot line except 25 feet when abutting a residential area 
and 15 feet abutting an alley. 

The businesses would like to have some of the setbacks reduced in order to allow 
for the expansion of their outdoor seating.  The outdoor seating area would not be considered in 
the overall minimums or maximums for lot coverage, or minimum floor area.  The business would 
also like to be allowed to have a permanent roof or fabric cloth over the outdoor structure to 
provide shade and to provide cover during a rain event.   Ideally the roof structure over the 
expanded outdoor seating, would not carry the same restrictions as the permanent structure. 

 Recommendation: Allow the Town Manager to work with the Town Planner and Town Attorney 
to draft language for a new Code of Ordinances that would allow for the expansion of outdoor 
seating to include a permanent roof structure. 

Attachments: 7a-36 6-B Downtown Business District 

192



193



194



195



196



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
 

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  February 16, 2022  

Subject: Resolution 2022-02 – Budget Amendment for FY2021. Increase 
Expenditure to cover costs in General Fund the Police Donations 
Fund.  

Submitted By:  Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 

 

Background Information 
. 

Increase expenditures for Police Capital Outlay in the General Fund. 
Increase expenditures for Operating Supplies in the Police Donations Fund.  
 
According to Town Code of Ordinances, 15-6 BUDGET AMENDMENTS AUTHORIZED at 
any time in any budget year, the Town Commission may amend the adopted budget or 
transfer any unencumbered balance, or portion thereof, from one fund, office, 
department or agency to another by approval of a resolution providing for same.  
  
Resolution 2022-02 complies with the ordinance. 
    
Recommendation:   

Motion to approve Resolution 2022-02 

Attachments: Resolution 2022-02 

197



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2020-2021; AMENDING RESOLUTION NO 2021-16; AMENDING 
EXPENDITURES FOR THE TOWN’S GENERAL FUND AND POLICE 
DONATIONS FUND; ESTABLISHING AUTHORITY FOR THE TOWN 
MANAGER TO IMPLEMENT THE BUDGET; AND PROVIDING FOR 
ADOPTION 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission adopted the Budget for the Town of Melbourne Beach for 
the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021 by Resolution No 2021-
16; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution amends Resolution No 2021-16 covering the period October 1, 2020 
to September 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach has conducted the requisite 
public hearing(s) on this resolution as required by Section 166.241, Florida Statues and Section 
15-6, Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne 
Beach, Florida, as follows: 

Section 1. That the 2020-2021 Town Budget for the General Fund and the Police Donations 
Fund and Resolution No 2022-02 adopting the aforesaid amended budget, is hereby amended 
with the following amendments.  Not all funds or accounts are depicted. Funds, accounts, and 
departmental budgets or appropriations not shown are not amended.  The overall budget 
bottom is not increased.  

#1. Increase expenditures for the following Funds: 

Fund 001: 

001-21-520.64.01 (Capital Outlay) in the amount of $3,800.00 to recognize the cost of the Dry 
Van Container 
 
Fund 622:  
 
622-21-520.52.90 (operating expense) in the amount of $189.00 to recognize the increased 
cost for expenditures. 

Section 2. That the amounts shown in Section 1. of the Resolution are hereby appropriated out 
of the treasury of the Town and any revenues accruing to the Town available for said purposes 
of the Town’s budgetary accounts. 

198



Section 3. That the Town Manager is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the 
implementation of the service programs and projects provided for in the budget. Such 
implementation is to be consistent with the provisions of the Town Code of Ordinances and 
policies established by the Mayor and Town Commission. 

Section 4. That the appropriations and authorizations provided in this resolution are hereby 
made effective as of February 16, 2022. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Brevard 
County, Florida, at its regular meeting this 16th day of February, 2022. 
 
 
       TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 
       FLORIDA, a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
        Wyatt R. Hoover, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jennifer Torres 
Town Clerk 

199



Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item      
 

Section:  New Business    

Meeting Date:  February 16, 2022  

Subject:  A/C unit for Town Hall (1 of 2) 

Submitted By:  Public Works Director Tom Davis 

Background Information: The two large A/C units that handle all of the Town Hall 
Building are 6 years old.  Both have developed leaks in the coils.  We have been adding 
refrigerant each quarter when MI air and heat service the units. One of those units has 
reached the point that it will not hold refrigerant and will not run. At this time we are 
operating with one unit that still can maintain enough refrigerant to run. 

Options: Replace coils in both units may get more time of use until compressors go out 
or replace one unit this year and the other unit next year.  We can function with one unit 
but it is not as affective and does work running unit more.  

Recommendation:  Replace one unit this year and keep other one running replace it next 
year. 

Attachments:  

• Proposal From Merritt Island Air and Heat 
• Proposal from CMS 

 

200



625 Cypress Street
Merritt Island, FL  32952
Phone:  (321) 452-5665
Fax:  (321) 452-6731 Administration

Customer Name       Date:
Address State           Zip
City       Phone Number
Store Name       Store Number 
Address City/State

Unit Number CU-3    Make   Voltage   Phase 3
Model Number       Serial Number
Tonnage     Stage  Call Slip Process I.D

Description of Failure:
During a recent visit, it was noted that the condenser coils were found with leaks in them. 
Recommend either replacement of the coils or unit in order to regain proper operations.

Description of Work to be Completed:
Isolate CU from house power and remove access panels. Remove and replace condenser coil 
and liquid line drier. Evacuate system to 500 microns. Restore house power and recharge with
virgin R-410a refrigerant. Verify proper operation and reattach access panels once complete.

Quantity Price Total Cost

2 $4,000.00
2 $1,620.00
2 $460.00
35 $1,400.00
1 $30.00
1 $30.00

Breakdown Cost:  Labor Total Material $7,540.00

Number of men 1 Total Hours 10 Rate Total Labor $950.00
Number of men 1 Total Hours 10 Rate Total Labor $950.00
Job Quoted by: Dylan Johnson Total Job Cost $9,440.00
Comments:
* All work to be performed during normal business hours.
* New materials and components have a 1 year warranty from the manufacture. Repair labor has a 90 day
   warranty from Merritt Island Air & Heat Inc. 

Approval Signature: Approval Date:

Fl
8/16/2021

Dry Nitrogen Gas
Welding Materials

Materials Included

REPAIR PROPOSAL

$2,000.00
$810.00

Liquid Line Drier
R-410a Refrigerant

$230.00

Condenser Coil

Melbourne Beach
32951

YC180C00A2AAA4A N1G6832564 (2016)
208-230York

$40.00

$95.00

Town of Melbourne Beach
507 Ocean Ave.

$95.00

Coil Coating

201



ESTIMATE
Estimate Expiration: 2/25/2022

WO Number:    2267508

Estimate Date: 1/25/2022

PO Number:

Description of Work
**PER CUSTOMER REQUEST
 
 AC 3 - CONDENSING UNIT
 MAKE:  YORK
 MODEL #:  YC180C00A2AAA4A
 SERIAL #: N1G6832564
 AGE:  6 YEARS
 SIZE:  15.00 TONS
 
 CMS proposes to:
 *Recover the refrigerant per EPA guidelines.
 *Disconnect and remove the condensing unit only via crane.
 *Purge the system with nitrogen to remove any contaminated
 oil.
 *Install a new condensing unit via crane.
 *Flush system with RX11
 *Install new manufacture recommended liquid line filter
 drier.
 *Pressure test system with nitrogen to verify no leaks.
 *Make new electrical connections,
 *Release nitrogen and perform triple evacuation.
 *Charge system with new refrigerant to manufacture specification.
 
 *Restart the unit and verify for proper operations.
 
 **Due to scope of work a crane and multiple technicians will
 be required.
 
 **4 to 6 week lead time once approved
 
 The ongoing global pandemic is continuing to disrupt supply
 chains across multiple commodities, Order ship dates may change
 due to unexpected inability of suppliers
 
 Excluded:
 Engineering, Structural Reinforcement, Additional crane requirement,
 Permits over $200.
 FAA permits, Street closures, Additional security, Afterhours
 access, EMS & BAS, integration, Life safety systems, Test
 and balance, Commissioning, Sprinkler systems
 Surveys, New electrical wire pulls, Roofing, Additional GFCI
 installation, Additional lighting installation, Local code
 upgrades.
 
 Price includes all labor, material, crane (if applicable) and
 equipment as listed above to complete the above scope of work. 

 

Qty Part # Description Price Ext Price

1.00 NA CRANE $741.00 $741.00

1.00 NA FREIGHT $142.86 $142.86

Subtotal: $883.86

Qty Part # Description Price Ext Price

24.00 S STANDARD TIME $85.00 $2,040.00

1.00 5830SWD 5/8 X 30CI SW DRIER $100.56 $100.56

20.00 LVW188 LOW VOLTAGE WIRE 18-8 PER FT (250) $1.54 $30.80

2.00 MELEC ELECTRICAL MATERIALS $20.00 $40.00

1.00 MHARD HARDWARE MATERIALS $20.00 $20.00

1.00 MREC RECOVERY & EVACUATION $40.00 $40.00

1.00 NA 15 TON CONDENSING UNIT $10,571.44 $10,571.44

1.00 NA ARMAFLEX $63.00 $63.00

1.00 NA COIL COATING PROTECTION $1,285.00 $1,285.00

1.00 NA ELECTRICAL $130.50 $130.50

1.00 NA FITTINGS $63.00 $63.00

10.00 NA LIQUID LINE PIPING $3.66 $36.57

1.00 NA REFRIGERANT $1,190.00 $1,190.00

10.00 NA SUCTION LINE PIPING $10.04 $100.43

2.00 NITRO NITROGEN 40 $72.25 $144.50

1.00 RX11LG RX11 FLUSH REFRIG 2LB CANISTER 
4300-11 $179.74 $179.74

1.00 VPO1QT VACUUM PUMP OIL 1 QT $42.25 $42.25

1.00 WELD WELDING MATERIALS $30.00 $30.00

Subtotal: $16,107.79

Unit: AC 3 Model: YC180C00A2AAA
4A

DOM: 2016

Manufacturer: YORK Age: 6 Serial Number: N1G6832564

Remit
To:

CMS Nextech, LLC
1045 S John Rodes Blvd.
Melbourne, FL  32904
PH:(800) 382-3150 Fax:(800) 897-7886

Bill
To:

TOMECORP
507 OCEAN AVENUE 
MELBOURNE BEACH, FL 32951

Job
Site:

TOME000001

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 1
507 OCEAN AVENUE 
MELBOURNE BEACH, FL 32951

Questions please contact Jose Viera  Jr @ 321-473-0311 
joseviera@cmsnextech.com

Customer and any 3rd party vendor expressly acknowledges and agrees 
that the information and format provided herein is the proprietary and 
confidential information of CMS Nextech, LLC, and its affiliates, and shall 
not be disclosed to anyone else without the express written permission of 
CMS Nextech, LLC.

Sale Amount: $16,991.65

Estimate Total: $18,181.07

Estimated Tax: $1,189.42Page 1 of 2

202



ESTIMATE
Estimate Expiration: 2/25/2022

WO Number:    2267508

Estimate Date: 1/25/2022

PO Number:

Description of Work, Continued...
Additional diagnosis and repairs may be necessary after startup
 of the components. Any additional repairs required after startup
 will be quoted or billed on a time and material basis at the
 agreed current pricing levels.
 Payment is due in 30 days from the completion of the above-mentioned
 scop 

Remit
To:

CMS Nextech, LLC
1045 S John Rodes Blvd.
Melbourne, FL  32904
PH:(800) 382-3150 Fax:(800) 897-7886

Bill
To:

TOMECORP
507 OCEAN AVENUE 
MELBOURNE BEACH, FL 32951

Job
Site:

TOME000001

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 1
507 OCEAN AVENUE 
MELBOURNE BEACH, FL 32951

Customer and any 3rd party vendor expressly acknowledges and agrees 
that the information and format provided herein is the proprietary and 
confidential information of CMS Nextech, LLC, and its affiliates, and shall 
not be disclosed to anyone else without the express written permission of 
CMS Nextech, LLC.

Sale Amount: $16,991.65

Estimate Total: $18,181.07

Estimated Tax: $1,189.42Page 2 of 2

203



1. Software conversion continues on time and as agreed.

2. Meeting with Fire Chief’s and Police Chief’s from island communities to discuss possible future
endeavors.

3. Met with members of Fire Association to discuss possible boat launch.

4. Attended TPO Save System Symposium with Chief Griswold.

5. Conference call with Point and Pay regarding new software system integration with Finance
Manager Kerr.

6. Met with Neal Tompkins to discuss S.E.A project and process.

7. Attended P&Z meeting with Building Official Robert Bitgood

8. Emails sent to prior Founders Day Vendors, food vendors and bands to sign up for this year’s
event.

9. Rotary has submitted their request to serve alcohol during Founders Day.

Town Manager Memo



Building Department Report  

January 2022 

• 38 permits issued
• Construction Value of the 38 permits totaled $1,162,200.00
• Total Permit fees $12,017.99
• 114 inspections completed
• 39 plans reviewed
• 2 Site Plan review for P&Z
• 1 BTR reviews
• 1 Vacation Rental inspections
• 1 New homes

204



Permit Description Issue Company Address

MB21_505 FENCE AND GATE, INSTALL
1/20/2022 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay 214 CHERRY DR

MB21_597 PAVERS, DRIVEWAY
1/6/2022 Surfside Pavers Inc. 422 FOURTH AVE

MB21_623 WINDOW, REPLACE
1/10/2022 A Better View 411 SURF RD

MB21_635 NEW HOME
1/4/2022 Joyal Construction 303 RIVERSIDE

MB21_641 NEW POOL AND SPA

1/13/2022 PINEAPPLE POOLS OF FLORIDA, LLC 208 THIRD

MB21_643 RE ROOF, FLAT
1/12/2022 Sal Vitale The Roof Doctor 204 BIRCH AVE

MB21_645 ELECTRIC, REWIRE
1/6/2022 Peay's Electric II, Inc. 311 AVENUE A

MB21_647 FENCE AND GATE, INSTALL
1/20/2022 FENCE OUTLET INC 303 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_648 HVAC, REPLACE

1/7/2022 BRG AIR SYSTEMS LLC 201 OAK ST

MB21_650 NEW DOCK, COVERED BOAT SLIP, LIFT.

1/14/2022 East Coast Docks 509 THIRD AVE

MB21_652 RE ROOF W/FLAT
1/10/2022 Patrick Roofing Inc 1504 ORANGE ST

MB21_657 ELECTRIC PANEL, REPLACE
1/14/2022 D&E Pump Sales & Service Inc 416 OCEAN AVE

MB21_659 METER CAN, REPLACE
1/12/2022 Done Right Contracting 310 DRIFTWOOD AVE

MB21_663 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE
1/12/2022 All Pro Garage Doors Inc 402 SURF RD

205



MB21_664 PROPANE TANK, INSTALL
1/10/2022 AMERIGAS PROPANE LP (2) 211 FIR AVE

MB22_001 BATHROOM REMODEL

1/7/2022 TODD THOMAS HOME IMPROVEMENTS 407 DRIFTWOOD AVE

MB22_002 REMODEL, LAUNDRY ROOM
1/5/2022 412 BANYAN WAY

MB22_003 FENCE
1/20/2022 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay 445 RIVER VIEW LN

MB22_004 HVAC, REPLACE
1/12/2022 AC All Stars LLC 311 AVENUE A

MB22_005 WATER HEATER, REPLACE

1/5/2022 Tucker's Cutrate Plumbing & Service 2105 ATLANTIC ST  621

MB22_006 PLUMBING, REPLUMB

1/19/2022 PIONEER PLUMBING OF STUART LLC 311 AVENUE A

MB22_007 RE ROOF W/FLAT

1/10/2022 G&G ROOFING CONSTRUCTION INC 223 SIXTH AVE

MB22_008 POOL RESURFACE

1/10/2022 POOL DOCTOR  OF BREVARD INC 2015 OAK ST

MB22_009 INTERIOR REMODEL
1/12/2022 TILT PATCHERS INC. 311 AVENUE A

MB22_010 SOLAR, INSTALL
1/13/2022 Lifestyle Homes Builders 208 THIRD

MB22_011 RE ROOF W/FLAT
1/25/2022 FLORIDA ROOF BROS LLC 300 SURF RD

MB22_012 REMODEL, BATHROOM
1/20/2022 204 ASH AVE

MB22_013 FENCE AND GATES, INSTALL

206



1/20/2022 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay 400 ANDREWS DR

MB22_014 GENERATOR, INSTALL
1/19/2022 Eau Gallie Electric, Inc 213 FIR AVE

MB22_015 SCREEN ENCLOSURE, INSTALL

1/21/2022 LAFFERTY ALUMINUM AND SCREENING LLC 517 AVENUE B

MB22_017 MECHANICAL, REPLACE

1/20/2022 ABLE AIR, INC 405 ATLANTIC ST

MB22_018 INTERIOR REMODEL, MASTER BATH/BEDROOM

1/24/2022 GELBERT ENTERPRISES INC. 1905 ATLANTIC ST  325

MB22_019 INTERIOR REMODEL, GUEST BATHROOM

1/20/2022 TODD THOMAS HOME IMPROVEMENTS 1910 CEDAR LN

MB22_020 RE ROOF, DRYWALL REPLACE

1/21/2022 BATCHELLOR CONSTRUCTION LLC 400 RIVER VIEW LN

MB22_021 LIGHTING, REPLACE
1/26/2022 HEARD CONSTRUCTION INC. 324 OCEAN AVE

MB22_023 GAS LINE, INSTALL
1/26/2022 ERIC THE GAS MAN 601 PINE ST

MB22_024 RE ROOF

1/26/2022 	DAVID SWIHART ROOFING INC 206 ASH AVE

MB22_031 SHED, INSTALL
1/27/2022 214 ELM AVE

207



Public Works Activities 

January 2022 

Rebuild of Rita Karpie overlook 

Removed all Christmas decorations/tree 

Installed stop signs Anchor and Neptune 

Mounted Curtis Byrd sign on pavilion 

Watered oaks on oak – FD will now water every Wednesday 

Had CMS provide proposal and access TH a/c system 

Trimmed some crossovers 

Trimmed dead branches palms in Ryckman Park 

Ordered and installed new bike racks Ocean and Ryckman  

Old bike racks to crossovers 

Posted no Parking signs southside tennis courts 

Removed huge amount of sand in Ocean Park turnaround 

Painted curbing Ocean Park turnaround and made walkway to OP 

Painted Crosswalks 

Replaced flagpole lights OP  

Repaired toilet mens restroom Ryckman 

New picnic tables 

Cleaned large area of invasive growth southeast corner OP 

Set up Community Center for meetings 

208



CODE ENFORCEMENT MONTHLY REPORT: January, 2022
NEW CASES FOR THE MONTH Of  January
CASE NUMBER     DATE ADDRESS CODE VIOLATION DATE CLOSED STATUS
2022-CE-001 1/6/2022 1403 Pine Street Motor home in drive 1/19/1022 M/H moved to side Case closed
2022-CE-002 1/6/2022 503 Andrews Drive Jet ski and trailer in drive 1/10/2022  Jet Ski moved Case Closed
2022-CE-003 1/6/2022 445 River View LaneTrailer parked in drive 1/9/2022 Trailer moved Case Closed
2022-CE-004 1/9/2022 416 Fifth Avenue Boat and trailer in drive 1/5/2022 Trailer Moved Case closed
2022-CE-005 1/10/2022   207 Fir street Motor home in drive 1/19/2022  Moved to side of home 01/19

2022-CE-006 1/10/2022 441 Sandy Key Trailer in drivwe X Owener called has Covid wants Ext
2022-CE-007 1/12/2022 406 Banyan Way Motor home in drive 1/20/2022  Motor home gone Case closed
2022-CE-008 1/20/2022 424 Avenue A Need bushes trimmed on corner 1/27/2022  bushes trimmed Case closed
2022-CE-009 1/20/2022 212 Fir Avenue Jet Ski in drive X  owner Will move this week
2022-CE-010 1/26/2022 201 Fir Avenue Basket ball hoop on Vacant Lt. X Talked to owner will move
2022-CE-011 1/26/2022 204 Fir Avenue Trailer on vacant lot 1/30/2022  Gone Case closed
2022-CE-012 1/26/2022 323 First Avenue M/H in drive 1/30/2022  M/H moved Case closed

OPEN/ACTIVE CASES FROM PRIOR MONTHS
CASE NUMBER     DATE  ADDRESS VIOLATION ACTION
1021-CE-063 6/9/2021 409 Third Avenue Yard overgrown X Waiting on  special Majistrate 
2020-CE-198 11/20/2020 303 Beau Jean shed witout permit X Waiting on special Majistrate 
2021-CE-125 9/16/2021 400 Avenue B Failed Short term insp. X  Waiting on  fire insp.

PRIOR CASES CLOSED IN January
2021-CE-168 12/29/2021 502 Colony Street Trucks parked on street Comm. 1/10/2022   House trimmed Case Closed
2021-CE-169 12/1/2021 201 Third Avenue Boat not behind fence 1/18/2022  fence instaled Case closed
2022-CE-001 1/6/2022 1403 Pine Street Motor home in drive 1/19/1022  M/H moved to side Case closed
2022-CE-002 1/6/2022 503 Andrews Drive Jet ski and trailer in drive 1/10/2022 , Jet Ski moved Case Closed
2022-CE-003 1/6/2022 445 River View LaneTrailer parked in drive 1/9/2022 Trailer moved Case Closed
2022-CE-004 1/9/2022 416 Fifth Avenue Boat and trailer in drive 1/5/2022 Trailer Moved Case closed
2022-CE-005 1/10/2022   207 Fir street Motor home in drive 1/19/2022 . Moved to side  Case Closed
2022-CE-007 1/12/2022 406 Banyan Way Motor home in drive 1/20/2022  Motor home gone Case closed

209



2022-CE-008 1/20/2022 424 Avenue A Need bushes trimmed on corner 1/27/2022 Bushes trimmed Case closed
2022-CE-011 1/26/2022 204 Fir Avenue Trailer on vacant lot 1/30/2022  Trailer Gone Case closed
2022-CE-012 1/26/2022 323 First Avenue M/H in drive 1/30/2022  M/H moved Case closed

NUMBER OF CASES OPEN THIS MONTH 12
NUMBER OF CASES CLOSED THIS MONTH 11
NUMBER OF CASES OPEN AND CLOSED SAME MONTH 9
TOTAL NUMBER OF CASES STILL OPEN 6
NUMBER OF CASES THAT WENT TO Hearing 0

PREPARED BY Robert Schaefer, CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, 

210



In January, we had a total of 4 arrests ranging from Driving Under the Influence, Domestic Violence, and Giving 

False Information to LEO.  

House checks/residential and business checks are continued daily. The officers and I continue to be proactive 

as they conducted several "directed traffic enforcement details" throughout the town. Our radar trailers are also 

placed in various locations throughout the city to assist in deterring speeders. 

We had 10 animal complaints/calls this month consisting of; 

5 Loose dogs 

1 Barking Dogs 

1 Service Dog on the beach 

2 Dog attacks (1) on a leash (1) asked to speak to Animal Control 

1 Dead turtle in the river 

One of our areas of high volume calls consists of Injured/Ill persons. These calls are unpredictable, and each of 

the officers is First Responder/CPR/AED certified and is first on the scene to provide medical treatment as 

necessary.  

All reports and calls for service are checked each day by either myself or a supervisor. Depending on the type 

of crime we have, procedures are in place to take the appropriate action to resolve the issue.    

PD News 

On February 1, 2022, Lt. Smith, Sgt. Hinchman and I received training and completed the requirements to 

become Instructors for the new MILO (Multiple Interactive Learning Objectives) simulation training.  

Melbourne Beach Police Department 
Monthly Report 
January 2022 

211



We are looking forward to using this instrument with our officers for interactive use of force, tactical judgment 

training, and firearms training.  

SRO Dovale meets with the Threat Assessment Team regarding pre-post-action plans on fire drills and various 

scenarios.  

The Melbourne Beach Police Officers and I are committed to community policing and keeping our town safe, 

which is our #1 priority.  

Please see the attachments:  

• Sergeant's monthly reports

Stay Safe, Chief Melanie Griswold 

212



JAN YTD
Total Calls for Service 940 940
Total Felonies 5 5
Total Misdemeanors 7 7
Total Capias Requests 1 1
Total Traffic Arrests 0 0
Total Other Arrests 4 4

911 Investigation 14 14
Alarm Business 4 4
Aggravated Assault 1 1
Animal Complaint 10 10
AOA LEO 22 22
Assist Citizen 5 5
Attempt To Contact 5 5
Baker Act 1 1
Burglary - Vehicle 1 1
Civil Matter 2 2
Crash 2 2
Disturbance Domestic 1 1
Disturbance Domestic Battery 1 1
Disturbance Noise 1 1
House Checks 92 92
Illegal Parking 39 39
Information 8 8
Injured/Ill Person 17 17
Intoxicated Driver 1 1
Intoxicated Person 1 1
Investigation 2 2
Open Door 5 5
Parking Citations 50 50
Patrol Area 80 80
Patrol Area Business 169 169
Patrol Area Residential 320 320
Patrol Area School 38 38
Reckless Driving 6 6

Melbourne Beach Police Department213



JAN YTD
Shooting in the Area 1 1
Special Detail 1 1
Standby-Keep the Peace 1 1
Suspicious Incident 7 7
Suspicious Person 3 3
Suspicious Vehicle 13 13
Theft 1 1
Traffic Citations 25 25
Traffic Complaint 2 2
Traffic Enforcement 83 83
Traffic Stop 102 102
Vehicle Inspection 2 2

JAN
Vehicle Mileage YTD
Car 360 0
Car 361 0
Car 363 0
Car 364 0
Car 366 0
Car 367 0
ATV 1 0
ATV 2 0

Melbourne Beach Police Department214



MEMORANDUM 

TO: LT. Smith 

FROM: Sgt. Kino 

RE: January Monthly Call Report 

DATE: 02/01/2022 

1/2- Traffic crash in the 900 block of Oak St.  Vehicle vs. pedestrian. The crash happened 
approximately 1 hour before the pedestrian reported it. The r/p advised that his leg was a little 
sore and declined medical on scene. He was given a crash form to complete and submit to the 
state. 

1/7- Traffic crash in the area of Ocean Ave. / Atlantic St.  Single vehicle hit a street sign and a 
palm tree. Airbag deployment and driver transported to HRMC. UPDATE- on 1/25/22, the driver 
succumbed to his injuries. Officer O’Byrne completed a Traffic Homicide Report.  

1/16- Aggravated Assault in the 300 block of Hibiscus Trl.  W/M threatened to harm another 
person with hedge trimmers. A capias request was sent to the State Attorney’s Office for review 
and possible charges. 

1/23- DUI in the 200 block of Ocean Ave. W/F was arrested for DUI and resisting arrest without 
violence. 

1/24- Vehicle burglary and petit theft in the area of Fourth Ave and Atlantic St.  A backpack 
containing multiple items was taken from the vehicle. 

1/24- Domestic disturbance in the 800 block of Pine St.  White male was charged with one count 
of DV, one count of battery on a person > 65, and VOP. 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Steven Kino 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343 Fax: (321)725-3253 

215



Monthly Report January 2022 

• 01/03: 300 block of Ocean Avenue a wallet was taken and a credit card was fraudulently used.

• 01/05: 200 block of Oak Street a male subject was taken to Circles of Care under a Baker Act

• 01/14: 1700 block of Orange Street, Father and Daughter were in a verbal argument. The parties were
separated.

• 01/20: Second Avenue and Atlantic Street male subject was pulled over for failure to maintain lane. Driver
was arrested for driving under the influence.

• 01/29: 200 block Fifth Avenue, during a traffic stop, the male driver gave officers a false name several times,
and after officers were able to identify the subject, he had felony warrants. The male was arrested for providing a
false name to law enforcement and a felony warrant.

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Jason Hinchman 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343 Fax: (321)725-3253 

216



Page 1 of 2 

Melbourne Beach 

Vol. Fire Department 
507 Ocean Avenue 

Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

(321)724-1736
FireChief@MelbourneBeachFL.org 

FIRE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 

January 2022 

Incident Response

For the month of January 2022, the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Fire Department
responded to 4 calls for service.  The average number of responding volunteer
personnel per paged out call for the month was 11.

Breakdown:

 1 Fire/Rescue 911 Calls (paged out)
 2 Public Service/Assist
 1 Special Event Coverage

Notable Incidents

 01/07/2022 – Motor Vehicle Accident w/ injuries.  Vehicle heading North on
Atlantic St. did not make the westbound turn onto Ocean Ave. and collided with a
DOT sign pole and palm tree.  Vehicle had moderate damage.  1 victim was
transported to a local hospital by BCFR in stable condition.

Department Membership

 Certified Firefighters: 20
 Support Services Personnel: 6
 Administrative Personnel: 2
 Probationary Personnel: 1

217

mailto:FireChief@MelbourneBeachFL.org


Page 2 of 2 

Notable Events

For his 35+ years of dedicated volunteer service, Safety Chief Dave Micka was
announced as the 2021 Space Coast Volunteer Firefighter of the Year by the Space
Coast Fire Chiefs Association.  The Award was presented at the 2022 SCFCA Annual
Meeting and he will be featured in an upcoming local magazine publication.

The Fire Department joined with many other local emergency response agencies to
support the Survive 1st 5k in Cocoa Village.  The event was held to benefit local first
responder mental health programs.

The beach fire program is active as of January 1st 2022 with 1 fire ring location at Ocean
Park.  Positive feedback has been received from the community regarding the program.
The 2 additional sites planned for Ocean Park have been postponed until the 2022/2023
season.

Chief Brown & Safety Chief Micka attended a meeting with the other beachside
municipal fire agencies to discuss the possibility of a joint fire/police training center in
Indian Harbor Beach.  Further discussions will be held in February to investigate the
feasibility.

Grant Updates

The Fire Department completed and submitted the FY21 FEMA Assistance to
Firefighters Grant in December 2021.  The purpose of the grant is to assist in offsetting
the cost of purchasing new radios.

The Fire Department is investigating possible grant opportunities available for a dock
and boat lift for Marine-58 (rescue boat).

218



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 2/9/2022 6:26:31 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Personnel Count per Incident for Date Range

INCIDENT NUMBER OF PEOPLE

NUMBER DATE INCIDENT TYPE FDID ON 
APPARATUS

NOT ON 
APPARATUS TOTAL

2022-1 1/7/2022 13:56:32 553 - Public service 19112 2 0 2

2022-2 1/7/2022 21:44:08 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 19112 7 4 11

2022-3 1/8/2022 16:26:15 553 - Public service 19112 2 0 2

2022-4 1/12/2022 09:44:22 553 - Public service 19112 1 0 1

TOTAL # OF INCIDENTS: 4 AVERAGES: 3.0 1.0 4.0

Start Date: 01/01/2022 | End Date: 01/31/2022

Doc Id: 358
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1 of 1

** Without EMS Assist or Service Calls: 7.0 4.0            11.0 
             (Paged out calls only)

**

219



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 2/9/2022 6:27:47 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Incident Address and Type for Date Range (Landscape)

INCIDENT # DATE LOCATION 
TYPE ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE ALARM CLEARED

SCENE
2022-1 01/07/2022 519 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 01/07/2022 13:56 01/07/2022 14:13

2022-2 01/07/2022 Intersection  Atlantic ST  / Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL, 329513295 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 01/07/2022 21:44 01/07/2022 22:10

2022-3 01/08/2022 401 Riveredge BLVD , Cocoa (RR name Cocoa-Rockledge), 
FL, 32922 Public service 01/08/2022 16:26 01/08/2022 20:57

2022-4 01/12/2022 2100 Oak ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 01/12/2022 09:44 01/12/2022 10:34

Incident Status(s): All Incident Statuses | Start Date: 01/01/2022 | End Date: 01/31/2022

Doc Id: 1251
emergencyreporting.com

Location Type is only filled in when it is marked Intersection, Directions, or National Grid on Basic Info 3.

Page # 1 of 1

220



Memo 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 
Date: February 09, 2022 
Re: January 2022  

We are in the fourth month of our fiscal year 2022. The target expenditure rate for December is 33.3%. All 
departments are managing their expenditures even though several lines are over the targeted expenditure rate. All 
budget items highlighted in green are over the target rate but within the anticipated spending of that budget line. 
All items highlighted in yellow are being monitored. All items highlighted in red are over expended. Some budget 
lines are fully expended early in the budget year while other lines like salaries and health insurance are paid on a 
monthly basis. The total General Fund expenditure rate, year to date is 34.7%. The Departmental expenditure rate 
breakdown is as follows:   

Legislative:  30.9% 
Executive:  25.2% 
Finance:  26.5% 
Legal:   25.8% 
Comp & Plan:     24.1% 
General Services:  31.1% 
Law Enforcement:  31.4% 
Fire:   27.3% 
Code:   31.5% 
Public Works:     30.3% 
Parks:   45.8% 

Discussion Items: 

The Town received Parking Revenue for January in the amount of $8,969.58. 
I attended a virtual visit with FEMA to discuss the ongoing application for reimbursement of funding from FEMA for 
COVID related purchases that were not covered under the CARES Act.     
I attended a Virtual visit with BS&A preparing for the transition over to the new software.  
Preparing for the FY21 Audit which will begin in March.  

221



For the Period:  10/1/2021 to 1/31/2022
Target Rate: 33.3%

Fund:  125 - Building Dept
Expenditures Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  24  Protective Inspections
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 75,116.00 75,116.00 22,462.37 52,653.63 29.9
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 817.52 817.52 101.35 716.17 12.4
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 5,746.00 5,746.00 1,606.40 4,139.60 28.0
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 7,512.00 7,512.00 2,225.00 5,287.00 29.6
500.23.01  Health Insurance 18,144.00 18,144.00 7,596.85 10,547.15 41.9
500.23.02  Life Insurance 136.00 136.00 56.30 79.70 41.4
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 240.00 240.00 26.75 213.25 11.1
520.31.00  Professional Services 55,703.54 55,703.54 15,232.00 40,471.54 27.3
520.51.00  Office Supplies 266.00 266.00 162.39 103.61 61.0
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 46.91 46.91 0.00 46.91 0.0
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 95.00 95.00 0.00 95.00 0.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 80.00 80.00 0.00 80.00 0.0

30.2

222



For the Period:  10/1/2021 to 1/31/2022
Targe Rate: 33.3%

Fund:  001 - General Fund Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

Dept:  11  Legislative
500.11.00  Executive Salaries 16,200.00 16,200.00 5,399.96 10,800.04 33.3
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 60,705.00 60,705.00 18,707.16 41,997.84 30.8
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,644.00 4,644.00 1,835.18 2,808.82 39.5
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,568.00 6,568.00 1,915.92 4,652.08 29.2
500.23.01  Health Insurance 8,568.00 8,568.00 3,568.80 4,999.20 41.7
500.23.02  Life Insurance 70.00 70.00 28.15 41.85 40.2
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 194.00 194.00 23.06 170.94 11.9
510.31.00  Professional Services 250.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.0
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 3,640.00 3,640.00 70.00 3,570.00 1.9
510.40.10  Travel & Meetings - Staff 2,788.00 2,788.00 0.00 2,788.00 0.0
510.47.00  Printing 5,015.00 5,015.00 271.59 4,743.41 5.4
510.47.20  Public Records Printing 0.00 0.00 34.65 -34.65 0.0
510.48.00  Promotional Activities 600.00 600.00 60.98 539.02 10.2
510.48.40  Legal Notices 10,000.00 10,000.00 3,312.18 6,687.82 33.1
510.49.50  Election Expense 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 875.00 875.00 510.00 365.00 58.3
510.54.10  Training & Schools 4,410.00 4,410.00 0.00 4,410.00 0.0
510.64.00  Machinery & Equipment 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 7,421.00 7,421.00 6,411.14 1,009.86 86.4

30.9

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  12  Executive
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 121,960.00 121,960.00 31,491.40 90,468.60 25.8
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 9,330.00 9,330.00 2,719.65 6,610.35 29.1
500.22.01  Retirement - ICMA 10,820.00 10,820.00 3,214.29 7,605.71 29.7
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 2,376.00 2,376.00 0.00 2,376.00 0.0
500.23.01  Health Insurance 25,697.00 25,697.00 5,026.10 20,670.90 19.6
500.23.02  Life Insurance 735.00 735.00 283.75 451.25 38.6
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 390.00 390.00 37.63 352.37 9.6
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 1,320.00 1,320.00 281.14 1,038.86 21.3
510.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,400.00 2,400.00 800.00 1,600.00 33.3
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 895.00 895.00 546.00 349.00 61.0
510.54.10  Training & Schools 450.00 450.00 0.00 450.00 0.0

25.2

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  13  Finance
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 61,234.00 61,234.00 18,861.31 42,372.69 30.8
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,684.00 4,684.00 1,402.60 3,281.40 29.9
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,626.00 6,626.00 1,932.60 4,693.40 29.2
500.23.01  Health Insurance 7,835.00 7,835.00 3,260.49 4,574.51 41.6
500.23.02  Life Insurance 70.00 70.00 28.15 41.85 40.2
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 196.00 196.00 23.21 172.79 11.8
510.31.00  Professional Services 7,000.00 7,000.00 5,633.53 1,366.47 80.5
510.32.00  Auditing Services 23,000.00 23,000.00 0.00 23,000.00 0.0
510.32.90  Banking Fees 4,700.00 4,700.00 1,013.40 3,686.60 21.6
510.32.95  IPS BANKING FEE 3,708.00 3,708.00 0.00 3,708.00 0.0
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00 2,100.00 0.0
510.41.15  IPS Communication Fee 660.00 660.00 296.12 363.88 44.9
510.47.00  Printing 180.00 180.00 130.98 49.02 72.8
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 60.00 60.00 0.00 60.00 0.0
510.54.10  Training & Schools 800.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 0.0
764.10.00  Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.0

26.5

223



Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  14  Legal Counsel
510.31.00  Professional Services 96,000.00 96,000.00 23,842.80 72,157.20 24.8
510.31.01  Code Enforcement Attorney 2,250.00 2,250.00 1,538.99 711.01 68.4

25.8

Dept:  15  Comprehensive Planning
510.31.00  Professional Services 20,000.00 20,000.00 4,812.50 15,187.50 24.1

24.1

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  19  General Services
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,520.00 2,520.00 2,520.00 0.00 100.0
510.31.00  Professional Services 4,020.00 4,020.00 1,240.00 2,780.00 30.8
510.31.11  Security 2,300.00 2,300.00 0.00 2,300.00 0.0
510.34.10  Janitorial Services 15,108.00 15,108.00 5,036.00 10,072.00 33.3
510.35.00  Pre-Employment Exp 135.00 135.00 269.00 -134.00 199.3
510.41.00  Telephone 10,992.00 10,992.00 3,325.51 7,666.49 30.3
510.41.10  Communication Services 43,608.00 43,608.00 18,512.84 25,095.16 42.5
510.43.00  Street Lights 46,000.00 46,000.00 11,423.27 34,576.73 24.8
510.43.10  Electricity 28,704.00 28,704.00 6,839.70 21,864.30 23.8
510.43.20  Water & Sewer 1,560.00 1,560.00 782.49 777.51 50.2
510.43.50  Waste Tax Service 2,807.00 2,807.00 2,185.75 621.25 77.9
510.45.00  General Liability Insurance 68,412.00 68,412.00 36,470.00 31,942.00 53.3
510.45.01  Flood Insurance 3,751.00 3,751.00 0.00 3,751.00 0.0
510.45.02  Property Insurance 50,920.00 50,920.00 29,483.50 21,436.50 57.9
510.45.03  Auto Insurance 7,788.00 7,788.00 3,763.00 4,025.00 48.3
510.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 4,232.00 4,232.00 1,582.31 2,649.69 37.4
510.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 14,500.00 14,500.00 0.00 14,500.00 0.0
510.46.36  Pest Control 3,000.00 3,000.00 942.32 2,057.68 31.4
510.46.41  Mowing Contract 22,410.00 22,410.00 9,592.00 12,818.00 42.8
510.47.00  Printing 600.00 600.00 481.63 118.37 80.3
510.49.48  Env. Boards Expense 3,420.00 3,420.00 995.16 2,424.84 29.1
510.49.98  Contingency 30,000.00 16,562.80 0.00 16,562.80 0.0
510.49.99  Miscellaneous 300.00 300.00 28.00 272.00 9.3
510.51.00  Office Supplies 9,000.00 9,000.00 3,685.45 5,314.55 40.9
510.51.10  Postage 1,200.00 1,200.00 403.85 796.15 33.7
510.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 3,000.00 3,000.00 811.88 2,188.12 27.1
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 320.00 320.00 0.00 320.00 0.0
510.64.01  Capital Outlay 174,261.00 174,261.00 31,575.00 142,686.00 18.1
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 17,521.00 17,521.00 2,144.27 15,376.73 12.2

31.1

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  21  Law Enforcement
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 570,664.00 632,664.00 178,539.67 454,124.33 28.2
500.12.50  Holiday Pay 19,000.00 19,000.00 19,253.06 -253.06 101.3
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 30,300.00 30,300.00 4,333.44 25,966.56 14.3
500.14.16  Hurricane Pay 17,950.00 17,950.00 0.00 17,950.00 0.0
500.15.00  Education Incentive Pay 6,600.00 6,600.00 2,751.43 3,848.57 41.7
500.15.01  First Responder 7,920.00 7,920.00 2,321.43 5,598.57 29.3
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 50,856.00 50,856.00 15,285.42 35,570.58 30.1
500.22.02  Police Pension 232,807.00 232,807.00 52,000.00 180,807.00 22.3
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 3,813.00 3,813.00 1,112.26 2,700.74 29.2
500.23.01  Health Insurance 83,152.00 83,152.00 36,660.92 46,491.08 44.1
500.23.02  Life Insurance 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,075.55 1,424.45 43.0
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 14,438.00 14,438.00 12,611.00 1,827.00 87.3
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 2,127.00 2,127.00 255.57 1,871.43 12.0
520.31.00  Professional Services 725.00 725.00 200.00 525.00 27.6
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 17,785.00 17,785.00 17,785.00 0.00 100.0

224



520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 2,240.00 2,240.00 496.55 1,743.45 22.2
520.41.10  Communication Services 4,488.00 4,488.00 828.52 3,659.48 18.5
520.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 5,500.00 5,500.00 126.99 5,373.01 2.3
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 2,000.00 2,000.00 124.91 1,875.09 6.2
520.46.16  Radar Calibration 700.00 700.00 100.00 600.00 14.3
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 12,000.00 12,000.00 3,824.21 8,175.79 31.9
520.48.00  Promotional Activities 1,200.00 1,200.00 288.96 911.04 24.1
520.48.50  Crime Prevention 1,100.00 1,100.00 641.81 458.19 58.3
520.49.99  Miscellaneous 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0
520.51.10  Postage 350.00 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 6,600.00 6,600.00 1,332.34 5,267.66 20.2
520.52.05  Protective Gear 8,328.00 8,328.00 177.07 8,150.93 2.1
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 13,000.00 13,000.00 4,865.13 8,134.87 37.4
520.52.70  Medical 600.00 600.00 0.00 600.00 0.0
520.52.90  Operating Supplies 3,720.00 3,720.00 489.69 3,230.31 13.2
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 1,955.00 1,955.00 742.83 1,212.17 38.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 5,400.00 5,400.00 632.00 4,768.00 11.7
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 58,795.00 58,795.00 32,518.00 26,277.00 55.3
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 14,738.00 14,738.00 5,378.30 9,359.70 36.5

31.4

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  22  Fire Control
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 85,610.00 85,610.00 15,921.41 69,688.59 18.6
500.14.50  Stipend Payroll 55,040.00 55,040.00 18,444.03 36,595.97 33.5
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 7,643.00 7,643.00 2,920.43 4,722.57 38.2
500.22.01  Retirement - ICMA 6,562.00 6,562.00 1,969.68 4,592.32 30.0
500.23.01  Health Insurance 4,968.00 4,968.00 2,069.55 2,898.45 41.7
500.23.02  Life Insurance 162.00 162.00 28.15 133.85 17.4
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 180.00 180.00 129.00 51.00 71.7
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 7,920.00 7,920.00 0.00 7,920.00 0.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 194.00 194.00 29.31 164.69 15.1
520.31.00  Professional Services 5,000.00 5,000.00 566.22 4,433.78 11.3
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 5,200.00 5,200.00 1,300.00 3,900.00 25.0
520.35.00  Pre-Employment Expense 1,225.00 1,225.00 28.00 1,197.00 2.3
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 500.00 500.00 307.92 192.08 61.6
520.41.10  Communication Services 1,260.00 1,260.00 611.25 648.75 48.5
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 8,665.00 8,665.00 5,107.70 3,557.30 58.9
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 22,950.00 40,950.00 12,414.07 28,535.93 30.3
520.46.30  Building Maintenance 1,000.00 1,000.00 63.79 936.21 6.4
520.48.55  Fire Prevention 4,536.00 4,536.00 1,578.29 2,957.71 34.8
520.51.00  Office Supplies 400.00 400.00 18.95 381.05 4.7
520.52.00  Uniforms 6,225.00 7,075.00 122.26 6,952.74 1.7
520.52.02  S.C.B.A. 1,850.00 1,850.00 1,826.48 23.52 98.7
520.52.05  Protective Gear 2,505.00 2,505.00 0.00 2,505.00 0.0
520.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,450.00 2,450.00 1,121.15 1,328.85 45.8
520.52.70  Medical 1,370.00 1,370.00 464.00 906.00 33.9
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 265.00 265.00 160.00 105.00 60.4
520.54.10  Training & Schools 6,650.00 6,650.00 548.00 6,102.00 8.2
520.54.12  Training Materials 1,920.00 1,920.00 802.32 1,117.68 41.8
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 36,777.00 66,777.00 0.00 66,777.00 0.0
520.71.00  Principal Retired 29,734.00 29,734.00 31,324.47 -1,590.47 105.3
520.72.00  Interest Expense 3,267.00 3,267.00 1,675.85 1,591.15 51.3
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 11,537.00 11,537.00 905.90 10,631.10 7.9

27.3

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  29  Code Enforcement
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 14,054.00 14,054.00 4,751.12 9,302.88 33.8
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 1,075.00 1,075.00 363.44 711.56 33.8
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 1,521.00 1,521.00 405.88 1,115.12 26.7

225



500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 45.00 45.00 4.86 40.14 10.8
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 35.00 35.00 0.00 35.00 0.0
520.45.03  Auto Insurance 124.00 124.00 0.00 124.00 0.0
520.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.0
520.51.00  Office Supplies 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0
520.51.10  Postage 350.00 350.00 77.45 272.55 22.1
520.51.20  Recording Costs 120.00 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 75.00 75.00 130.25 -55.25 173.7
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 75.00 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.0

31.5

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  41  Public Works
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 191,283.00 191,283.00 59,597.51 131,685.49 31.2
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 4,000.00 4,000.00 811.53 3,188.47 20.3
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 14,633.00 14,633.00 4,748.82 9,884.18 32.5
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 20,697.00 20,697.00 5,983.90 14,713.10 28.9
500.23.01  Health Insurance 21,840.00 21,840.00 7,140.90 14,699.10 32.7
500.23.02  Life Insurance 236.00 236.00 126.65 109.35 53.7
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,750.00 2,750.00 0.00 2,750.00 0.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 612.00 612.00 75.03 536.97 12.3
530.31.00  Professional Services 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.0
530.34.91  Landscaping 6,500.00 6,500.00 4,906.81 1,593.19 75.5
530.40.00  Travel & Meetings 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
530.43.10  Electricity 0.00 0.00 1,416.55 -1,416.55 0.0
530.43.15  Electric -  Williams Building 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,198.01 3,801.99 24.0
530.43.50  Dump Service 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
530.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,236.10 763.90 74.5
530.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,376.58 1,123.42 55.1
530.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 9,500.00 9,500.00 3,479.75 6,020.25 36.6
530.46.30  Building Maintenance 6,500.00 6,500.00 3,688.07 2,811.93 56.7
530.46.31  Maintenance Old Town Hall 500.00 500.00 298.48 201.52 59.7
530.46.34  Maintenance Ryckman Park 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
530.46.35  Pier Maintenance 500.00 500.00 356.52 143.48 71.3
530.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 7,000.00 7,000.00 5,086.79 1,913.21 72.7
530.46.43  Tree Expense 3,500.00 3,500.00 1,075.00 2,425.00 30.7
530.52.00  Uniforms 2,100.00 2,100.00 293.84 1,806.16 14.0
530.52.05  Protective Gear 1,000.00 1,000.00 632.14 367.86 63.2
530.52.20  Tools & Hardware 4,000.00 4,000.00 2,473.15 1,526.85 61.8
530.52.25  TOOL RENTALS 3,500.00 3,500.00 1,249.46 2,250.54 35.7
530.52.50  Gas & Oil 3,600.00 3,600.00 917.53 2,682.47 25.5
530.53.10  Street Repair 7,500.00 7,500.00 2,375.30 5,124.70 31.7
530.53.15  Parking Lot Maintenance 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0
530.53.20  Street Signs 10,000.00 10,000.00 4,008.63 5,991.37 40.1
530.54.10  Training & Schools 1,500.00 1,500.00 438.00 1,062.00 29.2
530.57.25  Welding 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
530.64.01  Capital Outlay 46,000.00 46,000.00 8,538.20 37,461.80 18.6

30.3

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  72  Parks & Recreation
570.48.10  Founder's Day 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0
570.48.50  Movies In The Park 1,800.00 1,800.00 47.94 1,752.06 2.7
570.48.52  Fourth of July 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
570.48.53  Christmas Decorations Park 1,500.00 1,733.00 2,483.84 -750.84 143.3
570.48.60  Easter Egg Hunt 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0
570.48.90  Recreation Programs 13,000.00 13,000.00 1,335.39 11,664.61 10.3
570.63.01  Tennis Court Expeditures 350.00 350.00 -14.00 364.00 -4.0

226



570.63.02  BBall & VBall Courts 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
570.63.05  Bocce Court Expenditures 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
570.64.01  Capital Outlay 0.00 13,437.20 13,437.20 0.00 100.0

45.8

Overall Expenditure Rate: 34.7

227



For the Period:  10/1/2021 to 1/31/2022
Target Rate: 33.3%

Fund:  172 - OCEAN PARK PARKING FUND
Expenditures Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  75  Town Parks
575.31.02  Lifeguard Contract 19,950.00 19,950.00 0.00 19,950.00 0.0
575.32.90  Banking Fees 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
575.34.10  Janitorial Cleaning 1,800.00 1,800.00 600.00 1,200.00 33.3
575.34.91  Landscaping 5,000.00 5,000.00 120.00 4,880.00 2.4
575.41.10  IPS Communications Fee 1,200.00 1,200.00 497.07 702.93 41.4
575.43.10  Electricity 1,584.00 1,584.00 413.96 1,170.04 26.1
575.43.20  Water & Sewer 1,500.00 1,500.00 283.09 1,216.91 18.9
575.43.50  Dump Service 660.00 660.00 0.00 660.00 0.0
575.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 1,000.00 1,000.00 192.60 807.40 19.3
575.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 0.00 0.00 877.00 -877.00 0.0
575.46.30  Building Maintenance 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.0
575.46.31  Building Maint Restrooms 0.00 0.00 103.78 -103.78 0.0
575.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 1,800.00 1,800.00 4,058.74 -2,258.74 225.5
575.46.41  Mowing Contract 11,205.00 11,205.00 1,614.68 9,590.32 14.4
575.46.43  Tree Expense 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
575.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 350.00 350.00 5.30 344.70 1.5
575.52.25  TOOL RENTAL 0.00 0.00 2,725.81 -2,725.81 0.0
575.53.15  Parking Lot Repairs 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0
575.53.20  Signs 300.00 300.00 304.89 -4.89 101.6
575.63.03  Volleyball Court 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
764.10.00  Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 120.00 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.0

21.2

228



ITEM - CLOSED OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research Pool Installation 
Process 

12/15/2021 1/17/2022 Commission Building/Public Works 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 Added to Action Items 

ITEM - CLOSED OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

Research Crosswalk Art 8/18/2021 1/17/2022 Mayor Hoover Public Works 

Date Directions/Notes 

11/17/21 Investigate permeable crosswalks 

10/20/21 Discuss Nov. RTCM 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

S.E.A. PROJECT 2/17/2021 2/16/2022 Mayor Hoover Town Manager 

Date Directions/Notes 

1/17/2022 Vision statement was approved. An update will be given at February RTCM. 

12/15/2021 Update at January RTCM with Dix Height information. 

10/20/2021 Discussed during meeting in depth. Update at Nov. RTCM 

9/15/21 Currently working on RFP for gardening services and will present it at next RTCM as an agenda item. 
TM has not been able to make contact with Susan Hall  

8/18/2021 Added landscaping of Parks to Action item – and discussed RFP for landscaping services 

7/21/2021 Check in with Susan (include VM Barton) and update at August RTCM 

6/16/2021 Commission will no longer pursue FDOT grant but will continue research of other funding and grants. 

229



4/21/2021 Commission approved increasing payment. Grant will be awarded in June. Update July RTCM 

3/17/2021 VM Barton researched FDOT landscape grant. Commission approved $5,000 to begin landscape design 
process with an architectural designer. Discuss at April TCW and April RTCM. 

2/17/2021 Explore grants, etc. Discuss at TCW on March 3, 2021 

 

12/2/2020 

Mayor Hoover suggested they do the necessary research and reach out to landlords and business 
owners, starting with the area east of the traffic light on both sides of the road north and south – and 
then meet again to discuss in February. Plan for workshops with business owners and PNZ involvement. 

 

12/16/2020 

Commissioner Walters requested the Town research a better microphone system, including the option 
of wireless microphones. He feels the sound quality of the current microphones is very poor. Dual timers 
were also requested by the Commission (we have one and need one more). 

 OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research the term multi-cultural 
in terms of building code and its 
use in other municipalities, aka 
“Granny Suites.” 

1/17/2022 2/16/2022  Commission  Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

1/17/2022 The Town Commission directed the Town Manager to research use of the term multi-cultural in 
relation to “granny suites.” 

  

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research golf cart parking and 
bike rack installation 

12/15/2021 2/16/2022  Commission Public Works 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

2/16/2022 Public Works Director Davis asked for input on areas for gold cart parking and offered ideas for picnic 
table placement. Update at February RTCM. 

230



12/15/2021 Added to Action Items   

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Evaluate audio equipment in the 
Community Center  

1/17/2022 2/16/2022  Commission Town Clerk 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

1/17/2022 Added to Action Items   

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

FDOT Traffic Stanchions 2/19/2020 06/15/2022  Commission Public Works 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 Update June 2022 RTCM 

11/17/21 Update Dec. RTCM 

8/18/2021 Update at October RTCM 

7/21/2021 Update at August RTCM 

6/16/2021 PWD will ask FDOT if subcontractor (who is restriping cross walks) can also paint stanchions 

5/19/2021 PWD update at June RTCM 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research Charging Stations 11/20/20 6/15/2022  Simmons Town Manager/PWD 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 TM said new charging companies are coming out and installing their own stations with incentives and it 
may be a good idea to wait and see what they are. Rapid charge is 3-4 times the cost. 

10/20/2021 Commissioner Runte reached out to two vendors he works with update Nov. 2021 

231



9/15/2021 TM does not have an update. Commissioner Runte explained the companies are hard to reach or non-
responsive- still working on it. Update next month 

8/18/2021 Update at September RTCM 

7/21/2021 Update at August RTCM 

6/16/2021 Follow up on “Electrify” a company that leases charging stations 

5/19/2021 Update at June RTCM 

4/21/2021 Town Manager was given a list by Commissioner Runte to evaluate and update again at May RTCM. 

1/20/2021 Update again at April RTCM 

12/16/2020 Town Manager Mascaro said there is a lot to understand about these charging stations that effect cost 
and what’s included. Update again at January 2021 RTCM. 

11/18/2020 Commission advised to keep this item open until the stations are installed 

10/21/2020 Commission approved cost to replace breaker box and TM to get vendor contacts from Comm. Runte 

8/19/2020 PWS said breaker box must be replaced at cost of $3,000-$4,000.Commission asked TM to find 
install/generic cost for Sept RTCM. 

 

7/15/2020 

TM shared that the offer from Tesla no longer available, they cost $500. TM is looking at other options 
and will come back in August with information. Commission asked TM to look for similar offers and/or 
grants as Tesla was offering. 

6/17/2020 Electricians scheduled Wed. Parking spot for bikes and two for charging stations. Update July RTCM 

3/18/2020 Commission suggested TM get with Tesla to see what they may offer - including getting one at no cost. 
Tobe discussed again at May TCW. 

6/3/2020 Commission asked TM to contact Tesla to see what they have to offer. Update June RTCM. 

 

 

232


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADP38D1.tmp
	Wyatt Hoover, MAYOR

	Blank Page
	Proposal 1.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADP5C79.tmp
	Permits Issued query

	ADPDCC8.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP6BDD.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPBB78.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPEF8A.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP3138.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPC2FF.tmp
	Town Manager Report for February 2022




